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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Delhivery Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of Delhivery Private
Limited (“the Company™), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31 2020, the Statement of
Profitand Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and
the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the standalone Ind AS financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and the
aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013, as amended (“the Act™) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2020, its loss including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity
for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Ind
AS Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with
the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act
and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial
statements.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Director’s report, but does not include the standalone Ind AS
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
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misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Responsibility of Management for the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows
and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act
read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility
also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act
for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone Ind AS financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
Or error.

In preparing the standalone Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone Ind AS financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these standalone Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone Ind AS financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.
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Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such

controls,

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate. to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern,

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone Ind AS financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone Ind AS financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related

safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order. 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act based on our audit, we
give in the “Annexure 17 a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books;

(¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;
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(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

(¢) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2020
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2020 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company with reference to these standalone Ind AS financial statements and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 27 to this report;

(2) The provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the
Company for the year ended March 31, 2020;

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in
its standalone Ind AS financial statements — Refer Note 32 to the standalone Ind AS

financial statements;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses;

iii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

“per Yogesh Midha
Partner
Membership Number: 094941
UDIN: 2009494 1AAAAEE 1535
Place of Signature: New Delhi
Date: 25-09-2020
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Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on other legal and
regulatory requirements” of our report of even date

Re: Delhivery Private Limited (‘the company’)

(i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) All fixed assets have not been physically verified by the management during the year
but there is a regular programme of verification which, in our opinion, is reasonable
having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No material

discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given by the management, there are
no immovable properties, included in property, plant and equipment of the company
and accordingly, the requirements under paragraph 3(i)c) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

(i) The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable
intervals during the year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such physical
verification.

There was no inventory lying with third parties.

(iii) (a) The Company has granted loan that is repayable on demand, to a company covered in
the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. In our opinion
and according to the information and explanations given to us, the terms and
conditions of the grant of such loans are not prejudicial to the company's interest.

(b) The Company has granted loans that are re-payable on demand, to a firm covered in
the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act. 2013. We are
informed that the company has not demanded repayment of any such loan during the
year, and thus, there has been no default on the part of the parties to whom the money

has been lent.

(c) There are no amounts of loans granted to companies, firms or other parties listed in
the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 which are

overdue for more than ninety days.

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act 2013 in respect of loans to
directors including entities in which they are interested and in respect of loans and

advances given have been complied with by the company.

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76
of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended).
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable.

(vi) To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Central Government has not
specified the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Companies
Act, 2013, for the products/services of the Company




S.R. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP

Chartered Accountants

(vii) (a) The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed
statutory dues including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax,
service tax, goods & service tax, duty of custom, professional tax and labor welfare
fund, cess and other statutory dues applicable to it. As informed to us the provisions

(viii)

(ix)

(%)

(xi)

of duty of excise are not applicable to the company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and audit procedures
performed by us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of provident fund,
employees” state insurance, income-tax, service tax, goods & service tax, sales-tax,
professional tax, labor welfare fund, value added tax, cess and other statutory dues
were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date
they became payable.

(c

) According to the records of the Company, the dues of income-tax on account of any
dispute, are as follows:
Name of | Nature Amount Period to | Forum where dispute is
the of  the | (Rs.) which the | pending
Statute Dues amount
relates
Income Income 18,357 2016-17 CIT (Appeals)
Tax Act | Tax Lakhs
1961
According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of
sales-tax, goods & service tax, customs duty, excise duty, value added tax and
cess which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.
In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the

management, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to
a financial institution or bank. The Company did not have any outstanding loans or
borrowing dues to government or dues to debenture holders during the year.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the
management and audit procedures performed by us, the Company has utilized the
monies raised by way of term loans for the purposes for which they were raised. The
Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer / further public offer
/ debt instruments,

Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and
fair view of the financial statements and according to the information and
explanations given by the management, we report that no fraud by the company or no
material fraud on the company by the officers and employees of the Company has
been noticed or reported during the year.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the
provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act is not applicable to the
company and hence reporting under clause 3(xi) are not applicable and hence not

commented upon.
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(x1i)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

In our opinion, the Company is not a nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of
clause 3(xii) of the order are not applicable to the Company and hence not
commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given by the management and audit
procedures performed by us, transactions with the related parties are in compliance
with section 188 of Companies Act. 2013 where applicable and the details have been
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as required by the applicable
accounting standards. The provisions of section 177 of Companies Act, 2013 are not
applicable to the Company and accordingly reporting under clause 3(xiii) insofar as it
relates to section 177 of the Act is not applicable to the Company and hence not
commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall
examination of the balance sheet, the company has not made any preferential
allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures
during the year under review and hence, reporting requirements under clause 3(xiv)
are not applicable to the company and, not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given by the management and audit
procedures performed by us, the Company has not entered into any non-cash
transactions with directors or persons connected with him as referred to in section
192 of Companies Act, 2013.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of section
45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 are not applicable to the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

Partner

Membership Number: 094941
UDIN: 20094941 AAAAEE1535
Place of Signature: New Delhi
Date: 25-09-2020

per Yogesh Midha

“hartered Accountants
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF DELHIVERY PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Confrols under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Delhivery Private Limited (“the
Company™) as of March 31,2020 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies
Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting
with reference to these standalone financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™)
and the Standards on Auditing as specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements was established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or

€rror.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial

statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting with Reference to these Financial
Statements

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial
statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these standalone
financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as neggssary to permit preparation of financial
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statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company;
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting with Reference to these
Standalone Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
standalone financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial
statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting with
reference to these standalone financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinien

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2020,
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company consi dering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

i il

pér Yogesh Midha

Partner

Membership Number: 094941
UDIN: 20094941 AAAAEE1535
Place of Signature: New Delhi
Date: 25-09-2020
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Delhiveey Frivate § imited
standalone Stavement of Profit and knss for the year ended March 31, 2020
LAT amounis in Indsan Rupees i tak hz, nnless otherwise stated)

" “March 31, 2020

et R 2 e 0 i Notes March 31,2019
Revenue from contracts with customers 21 277,745 163,383
Sthenrwoms 22 20,898 4114
Total income (1) i 298‘.6;61 169 497
Expenses
Employee benefits expenie 23 50,456 35,537
Furchase of fraved goods 577 "
Fair value joss on share by back obligations at fair value through profit or loss 40 - 148,066
l?l.'hcr expenses 24 241918 151,629
Total 17 292,971 335,232
Profit/ii.oss) before interest, dax, depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA) (11)-(1) 5,672 (165,735)
Depreciation and amoriisation expense 25 25438 9.220
Finance costs 26 6,634 1,879
Loss before exceptional items and tax (111) (26,400) (176.835)
Exceptional Items (1V) 27 {2,013 (1,270)
Loss hefore tax {(111+1V) (28.413) (178,104)
Tax expense
Current 1ax > pe
Deferred tax i =,
Total tax expense - :
Loss for the year (28,413) (178,104)
Other comprehensive income/(loss):
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent vears:
Re-measurement gain/(loss) on defined benefit plan (76) (1)
Income tax effect = i
Items that will be reclassified (o profit or loss in subsequent years:
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations (5 (22)
Income 1ax effect - -
Other comprehensive loss for the yesr (81) 23)
Total comprehensive loss for the year (28.494) (178.127)
Loss per share 28
Basic, computed ¢n the basis of loss for the year (351) (3467)
Diluted, computed on the basis of loss for the year (351) (3.467)
Summary of significant accounting policies 2.3
The accompanying noies are an integral part of the standalone financial statements.
As per our report of even date
For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Delhivery Private Limited
IC AL Firm registration number - 10 1049W/E300004 CIN: U63090DL2011PTC221234
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Dethivery Privare Limited
Standalone Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2020
(Al amounis i Indian Rupees in Iakhe, unless otherwise staied)

_ e e March 31, 2020  March 31, 2019

A)  Dperating activities T T
L.oss hefore tax (28.412) (178,104)
Adjustment to reconcile loss b fore tax to net cash fows
Iiepresiation of property, plant and equipment 13,217 8,948
Amortizanion of intangible ascets 720 272
Depreciation of nght-of-use assets 11,501 -
Allowances for doubtful debts 4,472 2,754
Bad debt written off 178 361
Allowances for doubtful advances 95 76
Provision for diminution in value of non-current invesuments 756 1270
Inventory written off 756 -
Share bused payment expense 4,881 3,794
interest expense 1,132 972
Interest on lease liabillity 3,780 -
Stamp duty expense (38) -
Unrealised gain on investment at fair value through profit and loss (1,335) (101)
Interast Incorme (14,294) (3,285
[nteresi income on unwinding of discount on security deposits paid (398) (202)
(Gain on sale of current investments (3.948) (247)
Fair value loss on share buy back obligations at fair value through profit or loss - 148,066
Fair value loss on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss ] 1,071
Loss/(Profit) on disposal of property, plant and equipment 81 (5)
Operating loss before working capital changes (6,857) (14,360)
Movements in working capital -
Increase in inventories (276) (567)
Increase in trade and other receivables (43.682) (8.119)
Increase in financial assets (20,699) (3,635)
Increase in other assets (2,959 (1,245)
Decrease in loans 807 58
Increase/(Decrease) in trade payables 10,995 (59)
Increase/(Decrease) in other liabilities 1,998 (4,078)
Increase in provisions 857 584
Cash used in operations (59,816) (31,421)
Income taxes paid (4,511) (2,286)
Net cash used in operating activities (A) (64,327) (33,707)

B) Investing activities
Purchase of property, plant & equipment (inclucing oties litangible assets, capital
work in progress and capiai advances) (20,882) (15,664)
FPayment towards acquisition of business - (2,654)
Investment in subsidiaries and associates (1,109) (581)
Proceeds on sale of financial assets  Liquid mutual fund units, debt instruments 456,963 29,102
Payment to acquire financial assets - Liquid mutual fund units, debt instruments (454,935) (118,122)
Matunity of bank depesits (having original maturity of more than 12 months)
including margin money deposits 17,544 28,052
Investments in bank deposits (having original maturity of more than 12 months)
including margin money deposits (71,856) (16,871)
Investment in bank deposits (having original maturity of more than 3 months) (28.787) 42)
Interest received 9,638 3,285
Net cash used in investing activities (B) (93,424) (93,495)

C) Financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of equity share capital (stock options exercised) 147 =
Proceeds from 1ssuance of share capital (Instruments entirely equity in nature) - 289,010
Proceeds from long term borrowings (net of current maturities of Rs 2,278.45
Lakhs (March 31,2019 - Rs. 564.23 Lakhs)) 10,145 4,962
Interest pard (1,086) (935)
Interest on lease liabitlity (3.780) -
Principal payment of lease liability (9,215) -
Repayments of short term borrowings (2,879 13,197
Proceeds from short term borrowings 9,054 2,879
Net cash flows from financing activities (C) T 2,386 292,719
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+() (155,366) 165,517
("ash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 165,967 450
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year (refer Note 12) 10,602 165,967
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Non-cash linancing aovivities

Fatir value Change in shiee s back obhigaiion

Recorciliation of liabilities arising, fromn financing activities

March 31, 2020

March 31, 2019
148,066

l!'arhculars O (I March 31, 2020 Cash Flows|Non Cash Changes April 01, 2019
Long tetm borcowing: (uieluding current maturity) I S 16,628 10,145 - 6,483
|Shart-term borrowings e 9,054 6,175 - 2,879
[Lease habiiy I _49783] 12995 30,699 32079
. ' __ﬁ 75,465 29,315 30,699 41,441
Summary of significant accounting policies 23
The accoinpan;ing notes are an integral part of the sonsolidated financial statements. s o
As per our report of even date
For 5.R.Batliboi & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Delhivery Private Limited
ICAl Farm regastration number 10 1049W/E300004 - U63090DL2011PTC221234
[ /‘/ @
T Yogesh Midha " Kandcep Kumar Barasia il Barua
Partner Dhrector Director
Membership no . 09444 DIN - 01432123 DIN - 05131571
Place New Delhi &
. 2
Date - September 25, 2020 \94 - c \)—G"’h
Amit Agarwal Kriti Gupta
Chief FinanciatOfficer Company Secretary
Membership No @ A56650
Place : Gurugram Place : Gurugram

DMate : September 25, 2020

Date = September 25, 2020
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LA amounts in Indiaa Kupees i |

A, Eguity Share Capivai (refer woie 14)

Equity Sharg . apiinl

Equity charce of Re. 0 cach wsued, wid.oribed amd Tully gaid
At March 313018

add Tesud durnig the car

AL 3 March 219

dd Issuoa darng, the vear (stock aptions evecised)

At 30 March 2020

Imstruments Entirely Zquity in Matre - 2.001% Cunulative
Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares (CCCPS) of

R, 10/ each ‘Series A fssued snbseiibed and Fally paid

Al March 31. 2018

Add Converted wo instruments enfinely equity i notwre Juring e jear
AL31 March 2019

Add Tesued during v var

Aq 31 March 028

Imetruments Entirels Equity in Natire . 0,001 % Cumulative

1 ampulsorily Convertible Prefereace Shares (CCCPS) of

125,100 each ( Scrics B, <, D, DL, F ano ¥) ivsved, subscribed

and fully paid

A1 March 31, 2018

Add Cumverted 1o insirumesnts entirely equity 10 nabie duning the e
Ai 31 March 2019

Add: lssued during he vear

At 51 March 2020

Other eyuity irefer note 15)

'f_ar the year ended March 31, 2020

“umber {Rs akhs)

58,395 L)
A e T
PN e L1 4 Fev—
974,952 a7

Namber {Rs. Lakhs)

= 291,667 2
191,667 TN
WigeT 2

Number (Rs. Lakhs)

3. BRE. 068 3,888

3,888,068 3888

= i i L0

I Attributable to the equity bolders of the Company Ttems of OCI
Lo Reserves and Surplus 1 -
Description Securities preminm | Share based payment | Retnined earmings | Foreign currency Total
reserve transiwtional resery~
Balance s at April 1, 2019 TIATT 9,663 (411,084)) 9 338085
Laois fior the vear - (28,413} - (28.413)
Other comprebensive incomel{loss)
Re-measurensent gains/{losses ) on defined benefit plans 4 (76) - (76
Exchangs differences on transiation of forcign operations - - - &3] fsj)j
Total comprehensive incomel{loss) = | - (28,484) 24 (28.494)
Add. ESOPs exercised |ransferred Rs. 1094 Lakhs 131 March
2019: Ks Nil) from share basea pavincnt reserve 1239 e o ® N R - L3y
1 ess: transfemed o securities premiuns on exercise of stock options
| P : A1.094)
Share msuss expenses S (18 - - (18)
Add Share based payment gxpense ¥ o n - 4381
Add: Effect of od unnnfudé\SIlﬁ_Es I i L p.ue) - (2.446)
| Balance as at March 31, 2020 T (#42019)| i M) 312,153
For the vear ended March 31, 2017
" Atiributable fo the cquity hokders of the Company | __liems of OCI
Reserves and Surplus
Description Sccurities premium | Share based payment | Retained earnings Foreign currency Total
FEserve transiational reserve
Balance 2 at April 01, 2018 9,292 5869 (232,979) 51 (217.76T)
Loss fon the ves 2 . (178.104) - (178 104)
Other comprehensive income/{loss)
Re-measurement gains/(losses ) on defined benefit plans - L8] - )
Excliange differences on translation of forcign operations 3 = (22) (22)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) - - (178,105) 22) (178.127)
Add Securities prenuum on Conversion CCCPS from Funancial
Lashility 10 instruments entarels cquity in nare 1 443.007 i - E 443,007
Add: Securities premuum on CCCPS issued during the year (Sarirs
F) mrssy E _ - 287352
Share ssues Expen.gs B SR 1. ) E R 1374
Add Share based pas ment cx i 2 3.7 3,794
Balance as at March 31, 201% H;ﬁr 9,663 (411,084) _ﬁI 338,085
Summary Jf significant accounting policies
I'he accompanying noles are analegral part of he tandalom. financisd statements.
As per vur repodt of ¢ en date
For S.R.Butlibo & Asswciates LLF For and on tehall of the Boad of Direstors of
Chartesed Accouniants Drlhivery Provate Limied
IC AL Firm reist gleon i o IOIO49WE S04 il DL 2NV PIC22 120
7
£
e oy Kwnar Barasia Sahil Barua
Partner Iirecior Durector
Membersiip no V94941 DIN - 01432123 DIN 05131371
Place : New Delly e

Lrate  Sepemober 25 20020

C«Wf‘*"

Anllt
“hwed Flnlllrlnl iy

Place  Gurugram
Date | Septenber 25, M40

Company Secrctary
Membership Mo - AS6o50

Piace Gurugram
Diaie © September 23, 2000
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Delhivery Private Limited
Notes to standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

Corporate Information

l;)elhiver_v Private Limited (thereinafier referred to as "The Company” or "DELHIVERY"), was incorporated as
SSN Logistics Private Limited on 22nd Day of June 2011 under the provisions of the Companies Act. 1956. The
company changed its name to Delhivery Private Limited as of 8th Day of December 2015. The Corﬁpany is
eng_aged in the business of warehousing and last mile logistics and also inveolved in designing and deploying
!ngwtlcs management  systems, provide logistics and supply chain consulting/advice, provide
inbound procurement support and other activities of a similar nature.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020, were approved by the Board of Directors and
authorized for issue on September 25. 2020.

Basis of preparation of financial statements and Significant Accounting Policies

Statement of Compliance

In accordance with the notification issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the Company has adopted

Indian Accounting Standajrds (referred to as “Ind AS™) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 with effect from 1 April 2017.

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS)
notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time)
and presentation requirements of Division 11 of Schedule II1 to the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS compliant
Schedule [11), as applicable to the financial statements.

These ﬁnan\::ial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis
except certain financial instrument which are measured at fair values, wherever applicable, at the end of
each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies below.

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial
statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees and all amounts disclosed in the financial statements
and notes have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs (as per the requirement of Schedule I1I), unless
otherwise stated.

Summary of significant accounting policies

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the recognition and measurement principles of
Ind AS requires the management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that effect the reported
amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end
of the reporting period. Although these estimates are based on the management’s best knowledge of current
events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future periods.

Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification.
An asset is treated as current when it is:

Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

Held primarily for the purpose of trading

Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period

eoog

All other assets are classified as non-current.
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A liability is current when:

a. It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

b. It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

¢. It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

d. There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash
and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

iii. Foreign currencies

The Co-mpany’s ﬁm{ncial statements are presented in Indian Rupees. For each foreign branch the Company
de:ccnnnnes the f:LInctmnal currency and items included in the financial statements of each entity are measured
using that functional currency, which is the currency of their countries of domicile.

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the functional currency spot rates at the date the
transaction first qualifies for recognition. However, for practical reasons, the company uses an average rate
if the average approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency
spot rates of exchange at the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss
with the exception of the following:

a. Exchange differences arising on monetary items that forms part of a reporting entity’s net investment in
a foreign operation are recognised in profit or loss in the separate financial statements of the reporting entity
or the individual financial statements of the foreign operation, as appropriate. In the financial statements that
include the foreign operation and the reporting entity (e.g., financial statements when the foreign operation
is a branch), such exchange differences are recognised initially in OCL These exchange differences are
reclassified from equity to profit or loss on disposal of the net investment.

b. Tax charges and credits attributable to exchange differences on those monetary items are also recorded
in OCL.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The
gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the
recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.c., translation differences on items
whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in OCI or profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or

loss, respectively).

Foreign branches

On consolidation, the assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into Indian Rupees at the rate
of exchange prevailing at the reporting date and their statements of profit or loss are translated at exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. For practical reasons, the company uses an average rate to
translate income and expense items, if the average rate approximates the exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions. The exchange differences arising on translation for consolidation are recognised in OCL. On
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disposal of a foreign operation, the component of OCI relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in profit or loss.

Cumulative currency translation differences for all foreign operations are deemed to be zero at the date of
transition, viz.. 1 April 2016. Gain or loss on a subsequent disposal of any foreign operation excludes
translation differences that arose before the date of transition but includes only translation differences arising
after the transition date

iv. Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, Investment in cumulative compulsorily convertible
preference shares (CCCPS), Investment in mutual funds, similar financial instruments and share buyback
obligation, at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in‘an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on
the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

a. In the principal market for the asset or liability, or o
b. In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing
the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

a. Level 1 — quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

b. Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

c. Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.

The Company’s management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value
measurement, such as cumulative compulsorily convertible preference shares (CCCPS), Investment in
mutual funds, similar financial instruments and share buyback obligation measured at fair value. The team
comprises of the CFO and Finance Controller - Finance.

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets and liabilities. Involvement of external
valuers is decided on the basis of nature of transaction and complexity involved. Selection criteria include
market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional standards are maintained.

At each reporting date, the finance team analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which
are required to be remeasure sed as per the Company’s accounting policies. For this analysis,
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the team verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation
computation to contracts and other relevant documents. A change in fair value of assets and liabilities is also
compared with relevant external sources to determine whether the change is reasonable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on
the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy

as explained above.

This note summarizes accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the
relevant notes.

v. Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
loss, if any

Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment. When significant parts of plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their
specific useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying
amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair
and maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Capital work in progress is stated at cost, net of accumulated im pairment loss, if any.

Depreciation on all property plant and equipment are provided on a written-down value method based on
the estimated useful life of the asset, which is as follows:

Property, plant and equipmeni Useful lives estimated by Useful lives as per
N B management _Schedule 11

Computer L 3 S ——
Computer Server 6 o 6 — |
Office Equipment 3-5 i S ’ 5 )
_Furniture and Fixture 5 10 I
Vehicles 3.86 |8 o

Plant and Machinery . 5 10 e

IT Softwares are to be depreciated to its useful life, if known. For all other IT software, 5 years is the useful
life to depreciate such softwares

Leasehold Improvements are amortised over 5 years or life based on lease period.

The useful lives of vehicles, furniture & fixture and plant and machinery are estimated as 3.86, 5 and 5 years
respectively. These lives are lower than those indicated in schedule 1L

The management has estimated the useful lives and residual values of all property, plant and equipment and
adopted useful lives based on management’s assessment of their respective economic useful lives. The
residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are rev iewed at
each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Depreciation on the assets purchased during the year is prov ided on pro-rata basis from the date of purchase
of the assets.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising

on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in the income statement when the asset is derecognised.

vi. Intangible assets

Intangible assets (mainly includes softwares) acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost.
The amortisation period rtisation method for an Intangible asset with a finite useful life are
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reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected
pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the
amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The
amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit and loss
unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset.

Further, assets assumed in business combination (Non-Compete and Customer relationship) are amortized
over the period of 5 year on WDV basis.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit or
loss when the asset is derecognised.

Business Combinations and goodwill

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for all business combinations, regardless of
whether equity instruments or other assets are acquired. The consideration transferred for the acquisition
of a subsidiary comprises the

+ fair values of the assets transferred;

+ liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquired business;

*  equity interests issued by the Company; and

+ fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are,
with limited exceptions (measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. The Company
recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquired entity on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis either
at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquired entity’s net identifiable
assets. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred,

However, the following assets and liabilities acquired in a business combination are measured at the basis
indicated below:
» Deferred tax assets or liabilities, and the assets or liabilities related to employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and measured in accordance with Ind AS 12 Income Tax and Ind AS
19 Employee Benefits respectively

The excess of the
= consideration transferred;
s amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquired entity, and
e acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquired entity

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed is recorded as goodwill.
If those amounts are less than the fair value of the net identifiable assets of the business acquired, the
difference is recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity as capital reserve
provided there is clear evidence of the underlying reasons for classifying the business combination as a
bargain purchase. In other cases, the bargain purchase gain is recognised directly in equity as capital
reserve.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Companies cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the
combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those units.
A cash generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more
frequently when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired.

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is deferred, the amounts payable in the future are
discounted to their present value as at the date of exchange. The discount rate used is the entity’s
incremental borrowing rate, being the rate at which a similar borrowing could be obtained from an
independent financier under comparable terms and conditions.
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viii.

X.

a financial liability are subsequently remeasured to fair value with changes in fair value recognised in
profit or loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not re-measured at subsequent
reporting dates and subsequent its settlement is accounted for within equity.

[f‘lhf..} business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date. Any gains

or losses arising from such remeasurement are recognised in profit or loss or other comprehensive income,
as appropriate.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at lower of cost and net realisable value. Inventories primarily consist of packing
material and consumables.

Leases

Till March 31, 2019

The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the
arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the
arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use
the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

Company as a lessee

A lease .is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease. A lease that transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the Company is classified as a finance lease.

Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

With effect from April 1, 2019
The company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration,

Company as a lessee

The company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term
leases and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and
right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of
right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease
payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The right-of-use assets are also subject to
impairment.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized to depict the transfer of control of promised goods or services to customers upon the
satisfaction of performance obligation under the contract in an amount that reflects the consideration to which
the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. Consideration includes goods or
services contributed by the customer, as non-cash consideration, over which Company has control.

The disclosures of significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions relating to revenue from
contracts with customers are provided in Note 21.

Revenue Recognition — Include Contract Balances:

Contract assets
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A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for services transferred to the customer (which
consist of unbilled revenue). If the company performs by transferring services to a customer before the
customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognized for the earned
consideration that is conditional.

Trade receivables

A receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only
the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting policies of
financial assets in financial instruments — initial recognition and subsequent measurement.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer services to a customer for which the Company has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration
before the Company transfers services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment
is made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the
Company performs under the contract.

Service Tax/Sales tax/ value added tax (VAT)/ Goods and service tax (GST) is not received by the company
on its own account. Rather, it is tax collected on value added to the services/commodity by the seller on
behalf of the government. Accordingly, it is excluded from revenue.

The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is recognised.
Rendering of Services

Income from services

Revenue is recognized only when the shipments are:

Delivered

Return to origin
Delivered to origin
Collected

= R e

The company collects service tax on behalf of the government and, therefore, it is not an economic benefit flowing
to the company. Hence, it is excluded from revenue.

Income from Fulfillment center:
Revenue is recognized for fulfilment centers only when the goods are under below stage

I. Storage — revenue is recognized on monthly basis from the date shipment is inbounded
2. Packaging / Order processing — revenue is recognized when the shipment is in outbound stage.
3. Procurement- revenue is recognized when items are picked from vendor location using Delhivery network

Dividend
Dividend income is recognized when the company’s right to receive dividend is established by the reporting date.

Interest

Interest income is recognized using the effective interest method. Interest income is included under the head
“other income” in the statement of profit and loss.

Sale of goods

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised at the point in time when control of the asset is transferred to the
customer, generally on delivery of the good.

The company considers whether there are other promises in the contract that are separate performance
obligations to which a portion of the t ction price needs to be allocated (e.g., warranties, customer loyalty
points). In determining the tran 4




Xi.

xii.

Delhivery Private Limited
Notes to standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

variable consideration, the existence of significant financing components, noncash consideration, and
consideration payable to the customer (if any).

Retirement and other employee benefits

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund/ social security is a defined contribution scheme. The
Company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund/social security. The
Company recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme/ social security scheme as an
expense, when an employee renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service
received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme
is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid
exceeds the contribution due for services received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as
an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash

refund.

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit
method.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, excluding amounts included in net interest on the
net defined benefit liability are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or
credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:

a. The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
b. The date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability. The Company
recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the statement of profit
and loss:

a. Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and
non-routine settlements; and
b. Net interest expense

The Company also operates a leave encashment plan. The company treats accumulated leave expected to be
carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-term employee benefit for measurement purposes. The
company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as a
result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date.

Taxes

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid
to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted
or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where the Company operates and generates
taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss
(either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the
underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken
in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation
and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Advance taxes and provisions for current income taxes are presented in the balance sheet after off-setting
advance tax paid and income tax provision arising in the same tax jurisdiction and where the relevant tax
paying units intends to settle the asset and liability on a net basis.
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Deferred taxes

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

a. When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the

accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss,
b. In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, when the timing

of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

a. When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of
the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss,

b. In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax
assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in
the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be
utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised
to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be

recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or

substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in
other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying

transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same

taxation authority.

xiii. =~ Share based payment

Employees (including senior executives) of the Company receive remuneration in the form of share-based
payments, whereby employees render services as consideration for equity instruments (equity-settled
transactions).

Equity-Settled transactions

The cost of equity-settled transactions is determined by the fair value at the date when the grant is made using
an appropriate valuation model.

That cost is recognised, together with a corresponding increase in share-based payment (SBP) reserves in
equity, over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled in employee benefits
expense. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at each reporting date until the
esting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the Company s best estimate of
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the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The statement of profit and loss expense or credit
for a period represents the movement in cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that
period and is recognised in employee benefits expense.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into account when determining the grant date
fair value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the Company’s best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market performance conditions are
reflected within the grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but without an associated
service requirement, are considered to be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the
fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing of an award unless there are also service and/or
performance conditions.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market performance and/or
service conditions have not been met. Where awards include a market or non-vesting condition, the
transactions are treated as vested irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied,
provided that all other performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

When the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, the minimum expense recognised is the expense
had the terms had not been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. An additional expense is
recognised for any modification that increases the total fair value of the share-based payment transaction, or
is otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of modification. Where an award is cancelled
by the entity or by the counterparty, any remaining element of the fair value of the award is expensed
immediately through profit or loss.

xiv.  Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders (after deducting preference dividends and attributable taxes) by the weighted average number
of equity shares outstanding during the period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to
equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted
for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

xv. Provisions and Contingent liabilities
i) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of
a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The expense relating
to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate
that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in
the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

ii) Contingent Liability

Contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and the existence of which will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one are more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Institute, or is a present obligation that arises from past event but is not recognised
because either it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation, or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made. Contingent
liabilities are disclosed and not recognised.

iii) Decommissioning liability

The Company records a provision for decommissioning costs of leasehold premises. Decommissioning
costs are provided at the present value of expected costs to settle the obligation using estimated cash flows
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tax rate that reflects the risks specific to the decommissioning liability. The unwinding of the discount is
expensed as incurred and recognised in the statement of profit and loss as a finance cost. The estimated
future costs of decommissioning are reviewed annually and adjusted as appropriate. Changes in the
estimated future costs or in the discount rate applied are added to or deducted from the cost of the asset.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability
or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at
fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.
Trade receivables are initially measured at transaction price. Purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place

(regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase
or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in two categories:

1. Financial assets carried at amortised cost
2. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets at amortised cost
A *financial asset’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a. The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash
flows, and

b. Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR, The EIR amortisation is
included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the
profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables.

Financial assets at FVTPL

FVTPL is a residual category for financial assets. Any financial assets instrument, which does not meet the
criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOC], is classified as at FVTPL.

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognized in the P&L.

Equity instruments

The Company subsequently measures all equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 at fair value, other than
investments in equity instruments in subsidiaries, joint venture, which are carried at cost.
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Derecognition

A ﬁnan;:ial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar financial
assets) 1s primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company’s balance sheet) when:

i. The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

il. The company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’
arrangement; and either (a) the company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, or (b) the company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor
transferred control of the asset, the company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the company also recognises an associated liability. The
transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations
that the company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the
company could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement
and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

i. Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt securities,
deposits, trade receivables and bank balance

ii. Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from
transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 18

The company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade
receivables.

The application of simplified approach does not require the company to track changes in credit risk. Rather,
it recognizes impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial

recognition.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life
of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default
events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the company in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the
original EIR. When estimating the cash flows, an entity is required to consider:

i. All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension, call and similar
options) over the expected life of the financial instrument. However, in rare cases when the expecied life of
the financial instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then the entity is required to use the remaining
contractual term of the financial instrument
ii. Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to

the contractual terms.

As a practical expedient, the company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on
portfolio of its trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over
the expected life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At every reporting
date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are
analysed.
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In case any balance is disputed by the customer then it will be reviewed separately for creating the provision
and amount up to 100% of the balance may be provided on the basis of nature of dispute. Any disputed
balance which is considered separately will be excluded from the normal ageing bucket for making the
provision,

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/ expense
in the statement of profit and loss (P&L). This amount is reflected under the head ‘other expenses’ in the
P&L.. The balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments is described below:

i. Financial assets measured as at amortised cost, contractual revenue receivables: ECL is presented as an
allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance
reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the company does not reduce
impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the company combines financial instruments on
the basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to
enable significant increases in credit risk to be identified on a timely basis.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss, loans and borrowings, payables, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The company’s financial liabilities include share buyback obligation, trade and other payables, loans and
borrowings including bank overdrafts.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

i. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss - Financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition
as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred
for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments
entered into by the company that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined
by Ind AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as
such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities
designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in
OCI. These gains/ loss are not subsequently transferred to P&L. However, the company may transfer the
cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss. The company has designated CCCPS issued with share buyback obligation, to
be measured at fair value through profit or loss.

ii. Loansand borrowings - After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of
profit and loss. This cate &perally applies to borrowings.
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Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

xvii. Impairment of non-financial assets

The company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired.
If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the company estimates
the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating
unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from
other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable
amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks speci fic
to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account.
If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are
corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available
fair value indicators.

The company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are
prepared separately for each of the company’s CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. These
budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term
growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow
projections beyond periods covered by the most recent budgets/forecasts, the company extrapolates cash
flow projections in the budget using a steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an
increasing rate can be justified. In any case, this growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth
rate for the products, industries, or country or countries in which the entity operates, or for the market in
which the asset is used.

Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is
an indication that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such
indication exists, the company estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s
recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying
amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.
Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit or loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount,
in which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

xviii. Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part
of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing
costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of tunds.

Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing
costs.
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Cash and cash equivalents

nt in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits

Cash and cash equivale 2 :
ct to an insignificant risk of changes in

with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subje
value,

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term
deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts (if any) as they are considered an integral part

of the company’s cash management.

Convertible preference shares

Convertible preference shares are separated into liability and equity components based on the terms of the
contract.

On issuance of the convertible preference shares, the fair value of the liability component is determined using
a market rate for an equivalent non-convertible instrument. This amount is classified as a financial liability
measured at amortised cost (net of transaction costs) until it is extinguished on conversion or redemption.

The remainder of the proceeds is allocated to the conversion option that is recognised and included in equity
since conversion option meets Ind AS 32 criteria for fixed to fixed classification. Transaction costs are
deducted from equity, net of associated income tax. The carrying amount of the conversion option is not
remeasured in subsequent years.

Transaction costs are apportioned between the liability and equity components of the convertible preference
shares based on the allocation of proceeds to the liability and equity components when the instruments are

initially recognised.
Change in accounting policies & disclosures

New & Amended Indian Accounting Standards

The Company applied Ind AS 116 Leases for the first time. The nature and effect of the changes as a result
of adoption of this new accounting standard is described below.

Ind AS 116 Leases (Refer note 31)

Ind AS 116 supersedes Ind AS 17 Leases including its appendices (Appendix C of Ind AS 17 Determ ining
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease, Appendix A of Ind AS 17 Operating Leases-Incentives and
Appendix B of Ind AS 17 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease).
The standard sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases
and requires lessees to recognise most leases on the balance sheet.

Lessor accounting under Ind AS 116 is substantially unchanged from Ind AS 17. Lessors will continue to
classify leases as either operating or finance leases using similar principles as in Ind AS 17. Therefore, Ind
AS 116 does not have an impact for leases where the Company is the lessor.

The company adopted Ind AS 116 using the modified retrospective method of adoption with the date of initial
application of 1 April 2019. Under this method, the standard is applied retrospectively with the cumulative
effect of initially applying the standard recognised at the date of initial application. The Company elected to
use the transition practical expedient to not reassess whether a contract is, or contains, a lease at | April 2019.
Instead, the Company applied the standard only to contracts that were previously identified as leases applying
Ind AS 17 and Appendix C of Ind AS 17 at the date of initial application. The Company also elected to use
the recognition exemptions for lease contracts that have a lease term of 12 month or less and are of low value

assets.

Upon adoption of Ind AS 116, the Company applied a single recognition and measurement approach for all
leases for which it is the lessee, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Company
recognised lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the
underlying assets. In accordance with modified retrospective approach, The Company has taken the
cumulative adjustment to retained earnings & Lease equalization Reserve, on the date of initial application.
Consequently, the company recorded the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments discounted
at the incremental borrowing rate and the right to use asset at its carrying amount as if the standard had been
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applied since the commencement date of the lease, but discounted at the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate
at the date of initial application.

As at March 31, 2020 and April 01, 2019

« 'Right-of-use assets’ were recognised and presented separately in the balance sheet.
s ‘Lease liabilities’ were recognised and presented separately in the balance sheet.

For the year ended March 31, 2020

e Depreciation expense increased because of the depreciation of additional assets recognised (i.e.,
increase in right-of-use assets, net of the decrease in “Property, plant and equipment’). This resulted
in increase in Depreciation and Amortization Expenses of Rs. 11,501 Lakhs (March 2019: Nil)

«  Rent expense included in ‘Other expenses’, relating to previous operating leases, decreased by
Rs. 12,995 lakhs (March 2019: Nil)

« Finance costs increased by Rs. 3,780 Lakhs (March 2019: Nil) relating to the interest expense on
additional lease liabilities recognised.

e Cash outflows from operating activities decreased by Rs. 12,995 Lakhs (March 2019: Nil) and cash
outflows from financing activities increased by the same amount, relating to decrease in operating
lease payments and increases in principal and interest payments of lease liabilities.

Appendix C to Ind AS 12 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatment

The appendix addresses the accounting for income taxes when tax treatments involve uncertainty that affects
the application of Ind AS 12 Income Taxes. It does not apply to taxes or levies outside the scope of Ind AS
12, nor does it specifically include requirements relating to interest and penalties associated with uncertain
tax treatments. The Appendix specifically addresses the following:

«» Whether an entity considers uncertain tax treatments separately
= The assumptions an entity makes about the examination of tax treatments by taxation authorities

= How an entity determines taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax
rates

» How an entity considers changes in facts and circumstances

The Company determines whether to consider each uncertain tax treatment separately or together with one
or more other uncertain tax treatments and uses the approach that better predicts the resolution of the

uncertainty.

The Company applies significant judgement in identifying uncertainties over income tax treatments. Since
the Company operates in a complex multinational environment, it assessed whether the Appendix had an
impact on its consolidated financial statements.

Upon adoption of the Appendix C to Ind AS 12, the Company considered whether it has any uncertain tax
positions, particularly those relating to transfer pricing. The Company’s and the subsidiaries’ tax filings in
different jurisdictions include deductions related to transfer pricing and the taxation authorities may
challenge those tax treatments. The Company determined, based on its tax compliance and transfer pricing
study, that it is probable that its tax treatments (including those for the subsidiaries) will be accepted by the
taxation authorities. The Appendix did not have an impact on the standalone financial statements of the

Company.
Amendments to Ind AS 109: Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation

Under Ind AS 109, a debt instrument can be measured at amortised cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income, provided that the contractual cash flows are ‘solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding’ (the SPPI criterion) and the instrument is held within the
appropriate business model for that classification. The amendments to Ind AS 109 clarify that a financial
asset passes the SPPI criterion regardless of an event or circumstance that causes the early termination of
the contract and irrespective of which party pays or receives reasonable compensation for the early
termination of the contract. These amendments had no impact on the standalone financial statements of the
Company.
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Amendments to Ind AS 19: Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement

The amendments to Ind AS 19 address the accounting when a plan amendment, curtailment or settlement
occurs during a reporting period. The amendments specify that when a plan amendment, curtailment or
settlement occurs during the annual reporting period, an entity is required to determine the current service
cost for the remainder of the period after the plan amendment, curtailment or settlement, using the actuarial
assumptions used to remeasure the net defined benefit liability (asset) reflecting the benefits offered under
the plan and the plan assets after that event. An entity is also required to determine the net interest for the
remainder of the period after the plan amendment, curtailment or settlement using the net defined benefit
liability (asset) reflecting the benefits offered under the plan and the plan assets after that event, and the
discount rate used to remeasure that net defined benefit liability (asset).

The amendments had no impact on the standalone financial statements of the Company as it did not have
any plan amendments, curtailments, or settlements during the period.

Amendments to Ind AS 28: Long-term interests in associates and joint ventures

The amendments clarify that an entity applies Ind AS 109 to long-term interests in an associate or joint
venture to which the equity method is not applied but that, in substance, form part of the net investment in
the associate or joint venture (long-term interests). This clarification is relevant because it implies that the
expected credit loss model in Ind AS 109 applies to such long-term interests.

The amendments also clarified that, in applying Ind AS 109, an entity does not take account of any losses
of the associate or joint venture, or any impairment losses on the net investment, recognised as adjustments

to the net investment in the associate or joint venture that arise from applying Ind AS 28 Investments in
Associates and Joint Ventures.

These amendments had no impact on the standalone financial statements as the carrying value of the
Company'’s interest in its associates is Nil.
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Delhivery Private Limited
Motes eo standalone financisl statements Tor the year ended March 31, 7020
tAll amounts o Indian Rupees u lakhs, unless otherwise sated)

5. Financial assets - lnve

Non-Current

Current

Investments at Cost

Investments in Unquoted =quity instruments (fully paid)

Investment in subsidiaries

Skvnet Logistics Privats Limited

5,510,000 ( March 31, 2019 - 5,510,000 ) equity shares of Rs 10 each { Ai cosi less provision for
dismmunion m value Rs 351 Iakhs (Maich 31, 2019: Mil)

Dielhivery Corp Limited, London | United Kingdom
1,650,165 ( March 31, 2019+ | 428 163) equity shares of | GBP each ( Al 205t l=ss provision foi
diminution in value Rs 1 475 jakhs (March 31, 2019 Rs | 270 Iakhs)

Delhivery HK Pie Limited, Honk Kong *
2,209,446 (March 31, 2019 1) equity share of | HKL each

Delhivery LISA LLC, USA
981 060 (March 31 2019 Mil) equity shares of USD | each

Onion Supply Chain Private Limited
10,000 (March 71, 2019 Mil) =quity shaies of Rs 10 each

Invesiments 9t fair value through Profit & Loss

Investments in Associates

Investmenis in Unquoted equity instruments (fully paid)

Lencon Technology Private Limnited; § ( March 31, 2019 : 5) equity shares of Rs 19,321 60 each

{includes security premium of Rs 19,316.60). (At cost less provision for diminution m value Rs 1 lakhs
(March 11, 2019, Rs 1 lakhs))

Investments in Unquoted preference shares (fully paid)

Leucon Technology Private Limited: 4,653 ( March 31, 2019 : 4,653 ) CCPS of Rs 19321 60 each
(includes secarities premium of Rs 19,311 60) (At cost less provision for diminution in value Rs 950 akhe
{March 31, 2019 Rs 950 lakhs))

Other lnvestments

Investments in Unquoted equity instruments (fully paid)

Leapmile Logistics Private Limited: 100 (March 31, 2019 : 100 ) equity shares of Rs 8,836.14 each
(includes securines premium of Bs 8,835 14) (A1 cost less provision for diminution in value Rs 3 lakhs
{March 31, 2019, R2 3 lakhs))

Moonshots Intemnet Private Limited: 100 (March 31, 2019: 100) equity shares of Rs 7,494.40 {meludes
security premiutn of B2 7,493.40° (At cost less provision for diminution i value Rs 7 lakhs ( March 31,
2019 Kz 7 lakhs))

NAXR Logistics Privale Limited. 2000 (March 31, 2019 . 2,000) equity shares of Rs 10 each {includes
secunty premium of Ks | lakh) (At cost less provision for diminution in value Rs 200 lakhs (March 31,
2019 : Rs 200 lakhs)

Other Investmenis

Investments in Unquoted preference shares (fully paid)

Leapmile Logistics Private Limited: 3,472 (March 31, 2019 : 3,472) preference shares of Rs 8,836.14
(includes security premium of Rs 5,835 14) (Al cost less provision for diminution in value Rs 117 lakhs
(March 31, 2019 * Rs 117 lakhs)

Moonshots [nternet Pavate Limited. 31,924 (March 31, 2019 - 31,924) preference shares of Rs.7 494 40 (
includes security premium of Rs 7,493 40) (A1 cost less provision for diminution i value of Rs 2,393 lakhs
(March 31, 2019 : Rs 2,393 lakhs)

NAXR Logistics Private |umited: 105 (March 31, 2019 : 105) prefaence shares of Rs 10 each (includes
security premium of Ks i4, 395 (At cost less provision for diminution in value Rs 15 lukhs (Mach 312019
* Rs 15 lakhs)

NAXHK Logistics Private Limited. 3,007 (tarch 31, 2019 3,007) preference shares of Rs 10 each (includes
security premium of Re 0,50 lakh) (At cost less provision for diminution in value of Rs 1,500 lakhs ( March
31,2019 Rs 1,500 lakhs)

_ Miarch 31,2020 March 31, 2019

_ March 31, 2020

March 31, 2019

51 =
199 1] =
103
I -
504 551 n T

*Value less than Rs. 0.5 Lakhs in previous year

(T sparce has been iienionally lefi blank)




Delhivery Private Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the vear ended March 31 2020

(Al amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise gtated) ...

5. Financial assets - Investments jconid.)

_ __Non-Current Current

tnvestments at fair value through Profit & Luss
() Perpetual Bond (Quoted)

300 (March 11, 2019 Nil) © 45% State Bank Of India Senes 11 Bd Perpetual of Rs. 10,13.561 fMarch 21 5,068
2019 sl
2500 (March 31, 2019, 250) umis of Export import Bank of India of Rs. 991,044 (March 51, 2019 2478 2455 b -
9,81,838) each
250 {March 31, 2019 Nil) 9.90% Icici Bank Limited S1 Ddel18At 9 90 Bd Perpetual (3(-Dec-2099) of Rs 2519 - -
10,07.403 (March 31, 2019: Nil)
500 (March 31, 2019: Nil} 8.85% Hdfc Bank Basel lii Perpetual Bonds Series 1/2017-18 (12-May-2060) of 4,949 il =
Rs. 5,89,824 (March 31, 2019: Nil)
(b) Non Convertible Debentures (Quoted)
Nil (March 31, 2019, 100) units of Kotak Mahindra Investment Lid SR-0017.9NCD of Rs. 10,00,000 each - - 1,006
(March 41, 2019: Rs. 10,00,000 exch)
750 (March 31, 2019; Nil) 8.6308% Kotak Mahindra Investments Limited Sr008 Ned 200121 Fwrs 7,621 -
10,00,000 (29-Jul-2021) of Rs. 10,16,138 each (March 31 2019 : Nil)
50 (March 312019 Nil}) 11 50% Housing Development Finance Corporation Ltd Sr-R-010 Rr Ned 22 Ju20 - 5.245
Fvrs1Cr (22-Jun=2020) of Rs. 1,04 89,740 (March 31, 2019 : Nil)
250 (March 31,2019 Nil) 7.55% Hdb Financial Services Limited Sra/1/108 Ned 19Ju20 (19 Jun-2020) of - = 2507 .
Rs 10,02,736 (March 31, 2019: Nil)
50 (March 31, 2019: Nil) Housing Development Finance Corporation Lid Sr-R-016 Rr Ned 16Spz0 - 5,099
Fvrs1Cr (16-Sep-2020) of Rs. 1,01,98,860 (March 31, 2019: Nil)
1000 (March 31, 201%: Nil} 9.02% Lic Housing Finance Limited 1r371 Ncd03Dc20 of Rs. 10,13.524 - * 10,135 =
(March 31, 2019: Nil} - = = =
500 (March 31, 2019, Nil) 7.70% Tata Capital Financial Services Limited 10-07-2020 of Rs. 10,0007 - * 5,000 #
(March 31 2019 Nilj
500 (March 31. 2019: Nil) 8.30% Tata Capital Financial Services Limited Sr Ned 04Ju2l of Rs. 997,747 4989 B ol -
(March 31, 2019: Nil)
500,000 (March 31, 2019 Nil) 8.80% Tata Capital Financial Services Limited Sr [ Cat lii&lv 8.8 Ned of 5018 = = =
Rs. 1,009 (March 31, 2019 Nil ) 278p21
250 (March 31, 2019: Nil) Lic Housing Finance Limited Tranche 263 Opt 2 8.67 Loa 26Ag20 Fwisl0Lac 2,517 -
Of Rs. 10,06 877 (March 31,2019 Nil)
500 (March 31. 2019. Nil) 9.45% State Bank Of India Ned Fvl0Lac 22Mar2030 (22-Mar-2030) Of Rs. 5,068 #
10,13,561 (March 31, 2019: Nil)
880 (March 31, 2019 - Mil) units of KOTAK MAHINDRAINVESTMENTS LIMITED SR025 WCD - 9,951 -
2371 20FVRSI0LAC of Rs. 11,34.466 (March 31, 2019 ;- Nil)
(c) Commercial Paper (Quoted)
1000 (March 31, 2019 Nil} Kotak msahindra Prime Ltd Cp 07-May-2020 of Rs 4,60617 - 4,606
(March 31, 2019: Nil)
1000 (March 31, 2019 Nil) HDB Financial Services Limited Cp 06-May-2020 Of Rs. 4,60,716  (March 4,607
31, 2019 M)
(d) Mutual fund (Quoted)
Nil (March 31, 2019 : 667) umits of Birl Sunlife Floating rate fund of Rs. 300 43 each (March 31, 2019: Rs = 2
300.43)
5,50,778 (March 31, 2019: 732,430,75) units of Aditya Birla Sun Life Overnight fund - Direct Plan - 2 = 5.950 7517
Growth of Rs.1,080.25 (March 31, 2019: Rs.1,026 25)
Nil (March 31, 2019 - 15 71,879.90 ) Hdfc Overnight Fund - Direct Plan - Growth Option of Rs. Nil (March - - s 44 364
31,2019 Rs2,822.37 ) !
Nil (March 31, 2019 2,20 38911 } units of ICICI Pru Overnight Fund Direct-G of Rs Nil (March 31, 2 . R 22.563
2019: Rs 102.38) '
Nil (March 31 2019 7 42 070} Kotak Overnight Fund - Direct Plan - Growth of Rs. Nil (March 31, 2019: - = - 7516
Rs1,012) ’
Nil {Marct 31 2019 7,29.641) unn of SBI Overnight Direct-Growth of Rs. Nil (March 31, 2019, Rs ¥ = i 77 563
3.092) o
Nil (March 31, 2019 - 289 408.93) units of 1'nt Overnight Fund - Direct Plan - Girowth of Rs. Nil (March 31 - - - 7517
2019: Rs 2,597.39 )
27,42,340 (March 31, 2019 Nil) Aditya Birla Sun Life Liquid Fund - Dir - Growth of Rs. 319.55 (March - 2 %763 .
31,2019 Nily o
/LBIS (Mach 31, 2019° naly units of HDFC Liguid Fund - Dir - Growth of Rs ,906.61 (March - = 2,805 e
31,2019 Nil) B
198748 (March 31 2019 ml) Axis Banking & PSU Debt Direct-Growth of Rs. 194099 3,858
(March 31,2019 Nil) "
9,77.007 (March 31, 2019 : Nil} units of Bharat Bond ETF 2023-Growth of Rs.1,023.53 (March - - 10,000
31 2019 Nil) !

= 37,709 2,455 81,044 113,042
e dsecloinre 38,613 3,006 81,044 113,042
Aggregate book value of quoted vestinents 117,170 115,250
Aggregale market value of quoied investments 118,753 115 497
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 904 ‘551
Apgregate provision for impawrment in value of investmenis 0,339 6,339




Delhivery Private Limited

Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31,

{All amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

2020

. Inventories

March 31, 2020

March 31, 2019

Inventories
-Packing material and consumables 1,783 2,263
Total 1,783 2,263
7. Trade Receivables
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Trade receivables 60,188 21137
Total trade receivables 60,188 21,157
Break-up of trade receivables
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Trade receivables
Unsecured, considered good 60,188 21,157
Trade receivables-credit impaired 8,662 5,470
68,850 26,627
Impairment allowance (allowance for bad and doubtful debts)
Unsecured, considered good - H
Trade receivables-credit impaired (8,662) (5.470)
(8,662) (5,470)
Total trade receivables 60,188 21,157
Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 0 to 90 days.
For terms and conditions relating to related party receivables, refer Note 33
Trade receivables includes:
Dues from companies in which the company's non-executive directors is a director
Oravel Stays Pvt. Ltd. 31 56
Snapdeal Private Limited 468 202




Delhivery Private Limited

Aotes to standalone dnancial statsments jor the year ended March 31, 2020

LAl amourtts in Indian Rupees m lakhs, unless otherwise stated) o e i e
8. Loans
Non-current ) - Current
e March 31, 2020 March 31,2019 March 31,2020 _March 31, 2019
Unsecurad, considersd gond
Loans and advances (o ielated parties (1zfor note 33)
- Unsecured, considered good 400 38
- Doubtful e = - o o 438
= = 1,338 238
Impairment allowance (allowance for bad and
doubtful balances) o . GHs) .
Loans end advances to others - 273 = .
- 273 400 938
9. Other Financial Assets
Non-current Current
. e March 31, 2020 March 31, 201% March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Security deposits
- Unsecured, considered good 4,265 2,893 6472 2540
- Doubtful = = 125 61
4,265 2,893 6,597 3,001
Impairment allowance allowance for bad and - -
doubtful balances) . - (125) __(oel)
4,265 2,893 6,472 2,940
Margin money deposits* 13,516 12,627 3,629 147
Deposits with onginal maturity for more than 12
months 14,581 4,689 20,054 5
48,097 17316 23,683 152
Other receivables #
- Unsecured, considered good s 81 304 163
- Doubtrul < = a -
= 81 304 163
Impaimment allowance (allowance for bad and
doubtful balances) 2 = " .
- 81 304 163
Accrued income
Unbilled receivable = = 27369 14,131
Interest accrued on deposits - o 1,346 226
Interest accrued on investments 1.491 2338 293
"8 i 31,053 14,650
Interest acerued an nter company deposits {refer note o
33)
- Unsecured, considered good - 7 265
- Daubtful - - 319 -
- - 326 265
Impairment allowance (allowance for bad and
doubtful balances) - (319) .
=T 585 20,300 61,519 18,170
# Includes dues from Officers and directors Z * 3 23
* Margin money deposits include deposits given to the followmng
March 31, 2020 March 31,2019
Banks 16,375 12,375
Vendors 100 100
Customers a7t 209
Total 17,145 12,774
Break up of financial assets carried at swortised cost
Non-current Current
A March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Security deposit (refer note 9) 4,265 2893 6,472 2,940
Trade receivables (refer note 1 - 60, 188 21,157
Cash and cash equivalents {1efer note 1.1) - = 10,602 165,907
Margin money deposis (refer note 9) 13,516 12,627 3,629 147
Deposits with onginal matrty for more than 12
months (refer note 9) 34,581 4,680 20,054 5
Other bark balances (refer nute 17) - - 28.866 s
Loans (refer note 8) 273 400 938
Advances recoverable wn cash or kund {refer aite 9) - Bl J04 163
Acerued Income (refer note 9) 1,491 19 31,053 14,650
Investments (refer note 5) S04 551 - -
34,757 11,124 161,568 106,046




Delbivery Private Limited
Noies to standaione linanciul statemenis for the yesr ended Murch 31, 2020
LAl amounis i [udian Rupecs i lakh. unless athey aase siated)

10, Advance inconse tax

i e e B L S T Current
Advance ncome: ax L ~arch :’I"\zgcl.: Morch 1. 2020 March 31, 2019
M— e : —
', Prepayments and other assets
NM-wrr:Il "'"‘
PE—— - —— e e A = Current
March 31, 2020 March 31,2019 March 31,2020 March 31, 2019
Capital advances
- Unsecured, consider £ good &8
i
= Doubtful 3 2
i | 695 S
Impairment allowanes (allowance for bad and l
doubtful balances) 1 .
i - -
Prepand 3
P TN —— | 634 1210 1192
54 634 1210 1,192
Balance with statutory/soverminent authorines
- Goods and service tax 3 5,167 i
- Other balance with gover irment suthorsties » ,“':q ‘-Iuo ;
Doubtful > s
= : — 5,636 3,398
Advance to suppliers
U %1
e 2w
= . 43 1%
) - . 1387 [T
Impairment allowance (aliowance for bad and = —
doubitful balances) i (43) (15)
= = 2344 i3
Others
Amount recoversble from third party agent- cash
collected on our behalf ; 1,047 1.273
Money held in trust 3.961 12127
Less Liabalines aganst money held in st e (4,961) . (12,127} .
Ly Ers s - 1,047 1275
112 1320 10,237 6,698
12, Cash and cash equivalent i
Mon-current Current
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Balances with bartks
- O current aceounts = 10 602 10,967
-In deposit accounts (with ~niginal maturity of less
than 3 months) = £ - 133,000
= = 10,602 165,967
For the purpose of the statemen: of cash flows, eash and cash equivalents comprise the following
o Non-current Current
i March 31, 2020 March 31,2019 A March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Balances with hartky
- Om current accounts 10,602 19,967
-In deposit accounts (with oniginal maturity of less
thar 3 morths) = = 133,000
- M 165,967
13, Other bank batanres
- - - - Non-current B Current
_March 31,2020 Murch 31,2019 March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Balances with banks:
« Dreposits with onginil maturty of more thun tiee
months but less than 12 months i 28,866 19
- Digposis with onginal manmity of more than 12
maonths 1639 20,054 3
- Margin morey deposits 12,027 ol 3629 7
17316 31549 21
Amount disclosed as "Other fianeial assed” (refer 1316 13 63 152
noie 1) s s
18 866 ™




Delliivery Private Linvited

Notes to i Naancial fne ihe year ended March 3, 2020
(Al amewnts in Ihan Rupess an lakhs, oaless oihenwse stated) SRSl e e e e
14, Share capital A, ——— e ———— e
e S e T e e B e RS e A e s s T e T March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Amthorised Share Capital
Equity Shares
100,228 (March 31 2009 1 360.228) Equdy Shares of R 10 each 200 114
Instrmments Entirely Equity in Nature
00,000 (March 31, 2009 3,00,0000 0 001 % Cumulative Compulsonly Coavenible
Preference Shares (CCCPS) of Rs 10/ anch (Seties A) i0 10
42,35.337 (March 31, 2019 42,35,3.7) 4001% Comuistive Compulsonly Convertibls
Preference Shares (COUPS) of Rs, +V- sach ( Senes B, C, 1, D1, Eand F) 4235 4,235
4,465 4,401
Issued, subscribed and lully paid-up shares
Equity Shares
974,952 (March 31, 2019 958 395) Equity Sharves of Rs 10 each 97 96
21 9%
Instruments Eniirely Equity in Nature
281,667 iMarch 31, 2019 Nil) 0.001% Cumulative Compulsority Convertible Proference Shares (CCCPS) of Ra 100 ench Series A 9 9
448719 (March 71, 2019 Nil) 0.001% Cumulative Compulsarily Convertible Praference Shares (CCTPS) of Rs 100/ each - Series B 449 449
478,434 (March 31, 2019 Nil) 0.001% Cumulaiive Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares (CCUPS) of Bs 100/- each - Series © 478 478
n33,351 (March 31, 2019 Nit) 0.001% Cumulative Compulsanly Convertible Preference Shares (CCCPS) of Rs 100¢- each - Senes D 654 64
48,531 {March 31, 2019 Nil) 0.001% Curnulative Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares (CCCPS) of Rs 100/ each - Series DI 49 49
801,139 (March 31, 2019 hal) 0.001% Cumulanve Compulsonly Conventible Preference Sharss (CCUPS) of Rs 100/- sach - Series E 8Ol BT
1,457,694 (March 31, 2019 Nil) 0 001% Curmnalative Compuisonly Convertitle Preference Shares (CUCPS) of Rs 100/ each - Series b | 458 1,458
3,917 3.917
(a) Reconciliation of the shares onistanding at the begiuming and nt the end of the reporting year:
March 31, 2020 March 31,2019
— Number Rs. Inkhs Numbrer Rs. lakhs
Equity shares
At the beginning of the vear 958,395 96 958,395 %6
Issued dunng the year (stock options exercised) 16,557 1 . -
Dutstanding st the end of the year 74952 W GE§, 305 3
Instruments Entirely Equity in Nature - 0,001% Cumulstive Compulborily
Caonvertible Preference Shares (OCCPS)
Series A
Al the beginning of the vear 291,667 9 - -
Converted to instruments entirely equity in nature durig the vear - - 291,667 29
Outstanding at the end of the year 191,667 ? 191,667 29
Series B
At the beginiing of the yea 448,719 449 - -
Converted to instrumenis entirely oguity wn nature duong the year = - 448,719 45
Ouisianding at the end of the year 448,719 449 448,719 449
Serms C
At the beginning of the year 478,434 478 z 2
Convented to instruments entrely equity in nature during the year - - 478,434 478
Outstanding at the end of the year 478,434 478 ﬂi.-;-.u 478
Series D
At ihe bewinming of the year 653,551 654 - -
Converted 10 instruments entirely equity i nature during the year - - 633,551 54
Ouisianding at the end of the year GSE*L 654 653,58] 54
Series DI
At the beginning of the year 48.531 49 - .
Converted 10 insiruments entirely equity in aature during the year = . 48,531 49
Outstanding at the end of the year 43,531 49 48,231 49
Series E
At the beginning of the year 801,139 801 3 =
Converted to instrumients entirely equity in nature dunng the year 2 801139 01
Outsianding at the end of the year "I._d.” 801 801,139 201
Series F
At the beginming of the year 1,457 694 1,458 ~ 3
Issued durning the yew : 1,457,694 1,458
Outstanding ui the end of the year 1,457,694 1,458 1,457,694 1.458
3,179,735 3517 3,179,738 33917

{This space I been amtennionally ioft biavk)




Delhivery Private Lumiled
Notes (o dalone financial for the year ended March 31, 2020

{All amounts i Indian Rupees m lakhs, unless otheraise stated)

b) Termsirights attached to equity shares

$ ¥ o £ o d the coor the b of
The company has only one <lass of equrty shares having s par value of Rs 10 per share Fach nolder of equaty shares 15 enfitled to one vote per share [n the svent r:t 1 am‘i.s'r::r “‘f:\e _ﬁ.—ﬁ‘!mﬂw:&r«.,
equity shares. wall he ~ntitled 1o receive remaining assets of the company afer distibution of all preferental amounts The distribution wall be in proportion 0 the mumber of equty id by rh

¢) Terme/rinhts attached to Instruments entierly equity /u nature

E P " FSILY o 5 3 it Mis2
Tha Company bad ssved 132,779 »nd 158 888 Senes A Cumulative Compulsonty Convertible Prefrience Shares (' CCP5") of Rs. 10 each fully pasd-up at 3 prenuum of 215 34 per share on 30h Apn

and 1= Novembe: 2012 respactively. Senes B 448,719 CCCPS of Rs. 100 sach fully paid-up a1 2 premium of R;: 50 P:rsl‘ﬂ.rtm 26th September 2013 Semes T -
up at & premim of Rs. 2 164.20 per shars on Jth September 2014, Series D 653.551 CCCPS of Rs 104 2ach fully paid-up ai a premum of Rs

378,434 CCCPS of Rs 100 each fully pmd
7,650 pes share un Sth May 2015, Senes DI - 48 531 COCPS

of Re. 100 each fully pawd-=ap at a premium of Rs 7,959 per share on | 7th October 2046, Sen=s E - 610,911 , 160,228 CCCPS of Rs 100 each fully pasd-up 2t 2 premuam of Rs 10,747 per share on 2Ind

March i 7 and 17th May 2017 -espectively and Series F 1.457.694 shares of Rs 100 each fully pard a1 2 premium of Rs. 19,726 per share on March 7.

’ i F i - the date of 1ssue of the
These TCCPS will be converted into equriy shares of ihe Company af the eaifier of (1) 19 y=ars and 11 months from -
Company proposes to file 3 DRHP for a firmly underwritten tssue of shares to the public. if the Shareholders of the Company have consented to the Qualified [PO under the pro

the company and the holders of CCCPS

Rank
These JCCPS will be senior to the Equity Shares of the Company

2019 and March 29 2019 respectively

respective CCCPS: or (11) of 2t any ome afier thewr ssuance, the
wisions of the agreement betwes=n

{d) Details of shareholaers holding more than 5% shares in the company

March 31, 2020 March 31. 2019

Name of the shareholder - % holding in the %% holding in the
No. class No. rlass

;:;T;:x SR 119,500 1226% 128.19% 1338%
Mohit Tandon 122,142 12 53% 128752 1343%
Kapil Bharat 50,752 321% 51,752 540%
Sahil Barua 127,285 13 06% 131,285 13 70
Multiples Private Equity Fund 1 Limited 145,159 14 8% 270,153 2RI
Tatemet Fund [Tl Pre Lid 180,448 18 51% 180,448 1833%
{"anada Pension Plan Investment Board (CPPIB) 93,304 95T - -
Alpine Opportunity Fund 1T LP 62 904 645% -
0.001 % Cumulative Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares (CCCPS) of Rs.10-
each ( Series &)
Trmes Internet Limited 291,667 1 00 D0 X0 667 100 (0%
0.001% Cumulative Compulsorily Coavertible Preference Shares (CCCPS) of
Rs.100/- each ( Series B, C, D, D1, E and F)
Times Iniernet Limned 197,017 50™ 197,017 S0T%
Nexus Ventures T, Lid 573.968 14 76% 726,599 18 6%
SVF Doorbell {Cayman) 1.1d. 1.415933 H547% 1235331 31T
Internet Fund 111 PTE Ltd 198,489 5% 666,473 17 4%
CA Swnft investments 553915 16 87% 833915 1632%
Deli. Cmf Pte 1.td 23,760 576% 223,760 3 ToM
Canada Pensior: Plan Investment Board (CPPLB) 3455110 889, - -
As per records of the company, ncluding its register of shareholders/ members and other declaratons received from shareholders hing beneficial the above shareholding represents both legal and
beneficial ownerships of shares.

() Shares reserved for issue under options
For details of shares reserved for issue under the employee stock option (ESOP) plan of the company, please refer note 36

15. {n) Other equity

Securities Premum

Balance as per the last financial statements

Add: ESOPs exercised [transferred Rs. 1,094 lacs (March 31, 2019 Nil) from Share Based Payment Reserve]
Add- Securities premium on conversion of CCCPS from Financial Liabihity to Instruments entirely equity m nature
Add: Secunities premium on CCCPS issued during the year (Senes F)

Less Share 1ssue expense

Share Based Payment Reserve

Balance as per the last financial statem=nis

Add Share based payment expense

Less. transferred to securities premium on exercise of stock nptions

Retained earnings

Balance as per last finanicial statements

Add: Loss duning the year

Add Re-measurernent losses on defined benefit plans

Add: Effect of adoption of Ind AS 116 Leases (Refer aote 31)
Net surplus in the statement of profit and loss

ltems of Other Comprehensive Income

Exchange differences on wansianon of foreign operations
Total reserves and surplus

15 (b) Mature and purpose of Reserves

Securities premium

Securities premium reserve 15 used Lo record the premiurn on 1ssus of shaies The reserve can
Companies Act, 2013

Foreign currency translation reserve

Enchmjgr differences anising on translation of the foreign uperaiions are recognised in other comprehensive in
sumulative amount is 1eclassified o profit or luss when the net invesunent is dizposed-off

Share Based Payment Reserve
The share options hased payment reserve 15 used to recogmse the grani date fair valyg

March 31,2020  March 31, 2019

739477 9202
1,239 -

3 443,007

- 287,557

(18) 1379
740,698 739477
9663 %860
488] 304
(1,094 =
13,450 3,663
{411,084 (2329™
128.413) (178104
(76} [t}
(2.0} -
(H42019) (A11,084)
34 o)
12153 338088

be unlised only tor imited purposes such as issuance of bonus shares in accordance with the provisions of the

come as described in accounting policy and accwnulated n a separate reserve within equiny The
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Notes to standalone finsncial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
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16. Borrowings

Non-current Current
Macch 31, 2020 March 31,2019 March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Term loan
Vehicle loan from bank (secured)* 2,020 364 1619 610
Secured bank loan** 1,961 3,198 5029 2311

9081 3,562 6,648 1,921

The above amount includes
- Secured borrowings 90981 3,562 6,648 2921

Amount disclosed under the head “Other financial liabilities ™ (note 17) = (6,648) (2.921)
9,981 3,562 : %

Others

Bill discounting facility from the bank (secured) **#7 " 2 5,000 2,879

Bank overdrafl repayable on demand (secured) # . B 4054 i
9,981 3,562 9,054 2,879

*Vehicle loans carries interest @8. 7% to 9.15% ( March 31, 2019 : 8.5% to 9.2%) per annum and are repayable in 35 equated monthly instalments of Rs 0.20 lakhs
(March 31,2019 (.19 lakhs} to 0.77 lakhs (March 31,2019 - 0.68) lakhs along with inierest The loan is secured by hypothecation of respective vehicles.

**Loan has been availed from HDFC Bank carrying interest rate @ One year MCLR+0.50% p.a ranging from 8.90% to 9.15% and are repayable in 35 and 30 equated
monthly instalments of Rs. 112.26 lakhs and 113.91 lakhs alongwith nterest respectively. The loan is secured by a first charge over certain of the company's movable
property (not being pledge) and fixed deposits/cash deposits

Further Loan has been availed from Axis Bank carrying interesi rate @ 8.45% to 9.15% and are repayable in 48 equated monthly instalments of Rs. 208.33 lacs plus
interest thereon. The loan is secured by a first charge over certain of the company's movable property (not being pledge) and fixed depositsiCash deposits.

*** Bill discounting facility has been availed from HDFC bank carrying floating rate of interest of 3 months MCLR plus 0.55% ranging from 8.30% to 8 85% (March
31,2019 . 3 months MCLR plus 0.55% ranging from 8.5% to 9.5% ). The facility is on the bills underlying raised with the respective principals.

# Bank overdraft (repayable on demand) is from HDFC Bank Limited, This is secured against margin money deposits. The bank overdraft is repayable on demand and
carries floating rate of interest on fixed deposit plus 0.5%. The rate of interest on FD is 7.5% (March 31, 2019 : 6.5%)

17. Other financial liabilities

Non-current Current
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 March 31, 2020 March 31,2019

Other financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

Interest accrued and not due on borrowings - = 83 37
Current maturities of long term borrowings (refer note 16) = e 6,648 2,921
% - 6,731 2,958

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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{AIlamounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

18. Provisions

B Non-current

Current

March 31, 2020  March 31, 2019

March 31, 2020 March 31,2019

Provision for employee benefits

Provision for gratuity { refer note 30) 1 641 1,059 7 30
Provision for compensated abscnces 833 552 126 93
2474 1,611 203 123
Other provisions
Provision for asset retirement obligation 20 30 - -
20 30 . 3
Total provisions 2,494 1,641 203 123
Mgaovement in aboye balances Compensated G g Asset retirement
absences ratuity obligation
As at April 01 2018 466 688 27
Arising during the year 341 430 3
Utilised (162) (29) s
As ai March 31,2019 645 1,089 30
Ansing during ine year 560 736 *
Utilised (246) (107) (19
As at March 31, 2020 959 1,718 20
19. Other current liabilities
Non-current Current

March 31, 2020 March 31,2019

March 31, 2020 March 31, 20019

Others
- Employee benefit payable - - 4,472 3,240
Advance from customers - - 318 491
- Capital creditors 3152 756 - -
- Security deposit . - 843 235
- Emplovee welfare fund - 283 131
- Cithers - 554 354
Statutory dues
- Withholding tax payable s 1,303 823
- Provident fund payable - 380 205
- Employee's state insurance payable - 36 44
- Professional iax payable 33 24
- Labour welfare fund payable 1 1
Amount payable, collected on behalf of the customers = = 2.158 2,545
3,152 756 10,381 8,383
20. Trade payables
Non-current Current

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Trade payable

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises

Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises(refer note 39 for details

of dues o micro and small enterprises)

248 26,314 15471
. - &0 6
— . ~ 248 16,304 15477

Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 0-60 days terms.
For explanations on the Company’s credit risk management processes, refer to note 35

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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21. Revenue from contracts with customers

~ March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Service income* 277,170 165,383
Sale of Goods 575 -
277,745 165,383

*includes -
Income from Delivery services 217,973 152,182
Income from Warehousing services 12,344 13,201
Income from Orion 36,505 -
Income from End-to-End services 9,149 -
Other revenue 1,199 -
_ 277,170 165,383

Timing of rendering of services

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Services rendered at a point in time 265,401 152,182
Services rendered over time 12,344 13,201
Total revenue from contract with customers 277,745 165,383

Contract balances
The following table provides information about receivables, contracts assefs, and contract liabilities from contracts with
customers.

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Trade receivables (unconditional right to consideration) 60,188 21,157
Contract assets (Refer note 1 below) 27,369 14,131
Contract liabilities (Refer note 2 below) 318 491

Notes:
1. The contract assets primarily relate to the Company’s rights to consideration for work completed but not billed at the reporting
date. The contract assets are transferred to the receivables when the rights become unconditional.

2. Contract liability relates to payments received in advance of performance against which amount has been received from
customer but services are yet to be rendered on the reporting date. Contract liabilities are recognized once the services are
provided, being performance obligation of the Company.

The allowance for doubtful accounts as of March 31, 2020, and changes in the allowance for doubtful accounts during the 12
months ended on March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019, were as follows:

Particulars
Opening balance

Add: Provision created during the year

Less: write offs, net of recoveries
Closing balance

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
5,470 1,794

5,415 3,846

2,223) (170)

8,662 5,470
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Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

(All amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

22. Other income

= March 31, 2020 March 31,2019

22.1 Finance income
Interest Incoime on

- Bank deposits 6,883 2,296
- Non-current investments 3,064 214
- Current investments 4214 550
- [nter-corporate loans 133 132
- Income tax refund - 93
- Unwinding of discouni on security deposits paid 398 202

Total finance income (A) 14,692 3,487
22.2 Other income
Fair value gain on investment at fair value through profit or loss 1,335 101
Net gain on sale of current investments 3,948 247
Profit on sale ot assets = 5
Credit balance written back 488 -
Miscellaneous Income 435 274

Total other income (B) 6,206 627

Grand Total (A+B) 20,898 4,114

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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23. Employee benefits expense

March 31, 2020 March 31,2019

Salaries, wages and bonus 40,073 27908
Contribution to provident and other funds* 2,638 1,848
Share based payment expense (refer note 36) 4,881 3,794
Gratuity expense (refer note 30) 659 430
Staff welfare expenses 2,205 1,557
50,456 35537

* Defined contribution plan

24, Other expenses

March 31, 2019

March 31, 2020
Line haul expenses 109,144 46,873
Qutsourced manpower expenses 38.466 26,782
Vehicle rental expenses 42,253 26,921
Rent 10,484 16,528
Security expenses 4,410 3,831
Power, fuel & water charges 8.030 6,302
Packing material 1,170 2,900
Stores and spares 803 508
Lost Shipment expense (net) 1,683 2,094
Allowances for doubtful other assets 721 -
Rates and taxes 769 98
Business development expenses 186 15
Repairs & maintenance
- Building 1,027 944
- Computers 96 116
- Others 1,413 1,374
Allowances for doubtful debts 4,472 2,754
Bad debts written off 178 361
Housekeeping expenses 2,064 1,604
Allowances for doubtful advances 95 76
Travelling and conveyance 2,606 1.818
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (net) 81 .
[nventory written off 756 -
Communication cost 1,782 1.880
Website and technology expenses 6,135 4,121
Fair value loss on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss % 1.071
Legal and professional fees 977 544
Payment to auditor (Refer details below)* 98 84
Director's Remuneration (refer note 33) 264 264
Printing and stationery 622 592
[nsurance expense 223 181
Recruiting expenses 137 167
Foreign exchange loss (net) 27 -
Miscellaneous expenses 766 826
241,938 151,629
*Payment to auditor March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
As Auditor;
Audit fee 95 82
In Other Capacity
Other services (certification fees) 1 -
Reimbursement of expense 2 2
~ 98 84

W
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Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(All amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise slated)

25. Depreciation and amortization expense

March 31, 2020

March 31, 2019

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 13,217 8,948
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (refer note 31) 11,501 %
Amortization of intangible assets 720 273
25,438 9,220
26. Finance cost

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Bank charges 1,489 833
Interest expenses : bank 820 702
[nterest expenses : others 27 24
Interest on bill discounting 286 246
Interest on lease liabillity 3,780 -
Payment gateway charges 232 73
6,634 1,879

27. Exceptional items
Diminution in carrying value of investments March 31, 2020 March 31,2019
- Skynet Logistics Private Lmited 551 -
- Delhivery Corp Limited, London , United Kingdom 205 1270
756 1,270
Allowances for loan and other balances to related party March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
- Loan to related party 938 -
- Other balances to related party 319 -
1,257 -

28. Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the loss for the year attributable to equity holders of the company by the weighted

average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year.

The foilowing reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Loss atiribuiable to equity holders of the company (28,413) (178,127)
Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating basic and diluted 52 51
EPS
Basic and diluted loss per share (551) (3,467)

There are potential equity shares as on March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019 in the form of CCCPS and stock options issued. As these
are antidilutive, they are ignored in the calculation of diluted earnings per share and accordingly the diluted eamings per share is the

same as basic earnings per share
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Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

(All amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

29 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions
The preparation of the financial statemnents requires mansgement 16 make yudgsments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounis
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about

these assumptions and estimaies could result in oulcomes that require a matcrial adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected

in future periods.

Judgements
In the process of applying the accounting pol
amounts recognised in the financial statements:

icies, management has made the following judgements, which have the most significant effect on the

Estimates and assumptions
The key assumptiotis conceming the future and other key sources of estimaiion uncerfainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of

causing a material adjustment to the casrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company
based its assumptions and estimates on paramefers available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and
assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the

Group. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Share-based payments
Employees of the company receive remuneration in the form of share based payment transactions,

consideration for equity instruments (equity-settled transactions). In accordance with the Ind AS 102 Share Based Payments, the cost of equity-
settled transactions is measured using the fair value method. The cumulative expense recognized for equity-settled transactions a each reporting
date until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the company's best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. The expense or credit recognized in the statement of profit and loss for a period represents the movement in
cumulative expense recognized as at the beginning and end of that period and is recognized in employee benefits expense.

whereby employees render services as

Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)
The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial

valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the
discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature. a defined

benefit obligation is bighly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. Ail assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change s the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated. the management

considers the interest rates of government bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies of the post-employment benefit obligation.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality table . The mortality table tend to change only at interval in response to demographic

changes. Futnre salary increases and gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation rates.
Further details about gratuity obligations are given in note 30.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments
When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active

markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the DCF model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable
mark‘ets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include
considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair
value of financial instruments.
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Useful Life of properiy, plant and equipment

Property, plant and ‘equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any Such cost includes the cost of
replacing part of the plant and equipment. When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company
depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the

carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are
rccognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Capital work in progress is stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment loss, if any.

Depreciation on all property plant and equipment are provided on a written-down value method based on the estimated useful life of the asset.
The management has estimated the uscful lives and residual values of all property, plant and equipment and adopted useful lives based on
management’s assessment of their respective economic useful lives. The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property.
plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. Depreciation on the assets purchased
during the year is provided on pro-raia basis from the date of purchase of ihe assets. An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss

arising on Derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in the income statement when the asset is derecognised.

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries

I'he Company reviews its carrying value of investments carried at amortised cost annually, or more frequently when there is indication for
impairment. If the recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is accounted for.

Impairment of goodwill

The Company estimates the value-in-use of the cash generating unit (CGU) based on the future cash flows after considering current economic
conditions and trends, estimated future operating results and growth rate and anticipated future economic and regulatory conditions. The
estimated cash flows are developed using internal forecasts. The discount rate used for the CGU’s represent the weighted average cost of capital
based on the historical market returns of comparable companies.

Business combinations

During the previous year ended March 31, 2019, the Company had made an acquisition (refer Note 34). The assets acquired were recognized at
fair value at the date of acquisition. Goodwill was recognized as the remaining portion of the purchase price that was not allocated to the acquired
assets as part of the purchase price allocation. To determine the fair values of individual assets acquired including property, plant and equipment,
non-compete and customer relationships, complex valuation models based on assumptions were used. This measurement was dependent on
estimates of future cash flows as well as the cost of capital applied.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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30. Gratuity plan

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. The gratuity plan of India is governed by the Paymient of Gratuity Act, 1972. Under the Act, employees who are

age.

in continuous service of five years are entitled to specific benefit. The level of benefits provided depends on the employees length of service and salary at retirement

The following tables summarize the components of net benefit expense recognized in the siatement of profit and loss and amounts recognized in the balance sheet

for the Gratuity:-

Benefit liability

Opening defined benefit obligation
Past service cost

Interest cost

Current service cost

Benefits paid

Actuarial (gain)/ loss on obligation
Closing defined benefit obligation

Expense recognised in the statement of Profit and Loss
Gratuity cost for the period

Current service cost
Past service cost
Interest cost

Net gratuity cost

Remeasurement gains/(losses) in other comprehensive income
Actuarial changes arising from changes in financial assumptions
Experience adjustments

Amount recognised in OCI during the year

Actuarial assumptions

Discount rate
Salary growth rate
Expected rate of return

Mortality

Attrition rate

Upto 30 years

Between 31 and 44 years
Above 44 vears

Normal retirement age

Mareh 31, 2020

March 31, 2019

1,089 687
32 54
577 376
(106) (29)
76 1
1,718 1,089
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
577 376
82 54
659 430
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
143 28
(67 27
76 1
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
6.78% 7.56%
7.00% 7.00%
IALM(2012-14) 1ALM 2006-08
ultimate ultimate
15.00% 15.00%
7.00% 7 00%
2.00% 2.00%
o0 vears 60 years

Discount rate: The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Indian government securities as at the balance sheet date for the estimated term of the

obligations.

Salary escalation rate: The estimates of future salary increases considered taking into account the inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors.

Attrition rate: The estimate of future employee turnover

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption as at 31 March 2020 is as shown below:
March 31, 2020
Discount rate increase by 0.5%

Sensitivity level
Impact on defined benefit obligation
Sensitivity level
Impact on defined benefit obligation

March 31, 2019

March 31, 2020

March 31, 2019

Future salary increase by 0.5%

Discount rate decrease by (.5%

115

09

Future salary decrease by 0.3%

9N

{59)

The sensitivity analyses above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligation as a result of reasonable changes

in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period.

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at ihe end of the reporting period is 11.26 years (March 31, 2019: 11.11 years)
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n

Leases

The Company has adopted Ind AS 116 "Leases" from April | 2019, which resulted in changes in accounting pelicies in the financial statements

Transition
Effective Apnil |, 2019, the Company adopted Ind AS 116 “Leases” and applied the standard to all lsase contracts existing on April 1, 2019 using the modified retrospective

method and has taken the cumulative adjustment to retained earnings & lease equilization reserve, on the date of initial application. Conseguently, the company recorded the lease
liability at the present value of thé lease payments discounted at the incremental horrowing rate and the right to use asset at its carrying amount as if the standard had heen applied
since the commencement date of the lease, but discounted at the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial application Comparatives as at and for the year ended

March 31, 2019 have not been retrospectively adjusted.

ted in recognition of 'Right of Use' assct of Rs. 29,289 Lakhs and a lease liability of Rs. 32,079 Lakhs, The cumulative =ffect

On tansition, ihe adoption of the new standard resul
Rs. 345 Lakhs have been

of applying the standard resulted in Rs. 2,791 Lakhs (net of taxes of Rs. 2791 Lakhs) of which Rs. 2,446 [ akhs have been debited to retained earnings &
debited to lease equilization reserve Ind AS 116 has resulted in an increase in cash inflows from operating activities and an increase in cash outflows from financing activities on

account of lease payments.

The following is the summary of practical expedients elected on initial application:

1. Applying multiple discount rates to a porifolio of leases based on the duration of Leases which are -

0 - 36 months - 8.75%

37-72 months - 8.95%

73 months & Above - 9%

2. Applied the exemption not to recognize right-of-use assets and liabilities for leases with less than |2 months of lease term on the date of i
3 Excluded the initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of initial application.

4 The company has alsc elected not to reassess whether a contract is, or contains a lease at the date of initial application. Instead, for contra
date the comapany relied on its assessment made applying Ind AS 17 and Appendix C to Ind AS 17, Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease

nitial application.

cts entered into before the transition

The difference between the lease obligation recorded as of March 31, 2019 under Ind AS 17 disclosed under Note 31 of the 2019 financial statements and the value of the lease
Hability as of April 1, 2019 is primarily on account of inclusion of extension options reasonably certain to be exercised in measuring the lease liability in accordance with Ind AS

116 and discounting the lease liabilities to the present value under Ind AS 116.

Set out below are the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognised and the movements during the period

As at 1 April 2019 29,289
Additions 30,024
Depreciation expense (Note 25) (11,501)
As at 31 March 2020 47,812
Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the movements during the period:
As at 1 April 2019 32,079
Additions 26,919
Accretion of interest 3,780
Payments (12,995)
As at 31 March 2020 49,783
Current 11,077
Non-current 38,706
The following are the amounts recognised in Staternent of Profit or Loss:
Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets (11,501)
Interest expense on lease habilities 3,780
Expense relating to shori-term leases (included in other expenses) 10,484
2,763

Total amount recognised in Profit or Loss

I'he company had total cash outflows for leases of Rs. 12,995 lakhs in 31 March 2020 (31 March 2019 Rs. Nil). The company also had non-cash additions to lease habilities of Rs
26,919 Jakhs and night-of-use assets of Rs 30,024 Lakhs in 31 March 2020 (i1 March 2019 Rs Nil).
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M

Leases (Contd.)

The company has several lease coritracts that include exiension and tenmination vpiions, These options are negotiated by management to provide flexibility in managing the leased-
asset portfolio and align with the company business needs. Management exercises significant judgement in determining whether these extension and termination options are
reasonably eertain to be exercised and has assessed that the company is reasonably certain to exercise the extension options, while not exercising the termination options
Accordingly, there are no undiscounted potential future rental payments relating to periods following ihe exercise date of extension and termination options that are not included in

ihe lease term

The company does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities as the current asseis are sufficient to meet the obligations related to lease liabilities as and

when they fall due

Rental expense recorded for short-term leases was Rs. 10,484 Lakhs for ihe year ended March 51,2020

The aggregate deprectation on ROU assets has been included under depreciation and amortisation expense in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss

The effect of adoption of Ind AS 116 is as follows:
Balance Sheet

Assets
Right-of-use assets
Total assets

Equity
Retaned earnings
Total equity

Liabilities
Lease liabilities
Total liabilities

Income Statement

Depreciation and amortisation
Other expenses

Finance cost

Loss for the year

Statement of cash flows (increase/(decrease)

Impact on Statement of Profit and Loss

Depreciation on right-of-use assets

Interest cost

Stamp duty expense

Cash generated from/(used in) operations (A)

Payment of interest portion of lease liabilities

Payment of principal portion of lease liabilities

Net cash flows from financing activities (B)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents during the year (A+B)

I'here is no matenal impact on other comprehensive income or the hasic and diluted earnings per share,

(This space has intentionally been left blank)

March 31, 2020

March 31,2019

47,812

47,812

(2.446)

(2.436)

49.783

49,783

March 31, 2020

March 31, 2019

11,501
(13,033)
3,780

2,248

March 31, 2020

March 31, 2019

(2.248)
11,501
3,780
(38)

12,995

(3,780)
(9.215)

(12,995)
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Notes fo standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(All amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

32. Commitments and contingencics

A. Capital and other commitments

a) Capital commitment not provided for (net of advances) as on March 21, 2020 is Rs. 1,390 Lakhs (March 31, 2019: Rs.39 Lakhs).
b) Other commitment ( Labour guarantee- Dubai branch) as on March 31, 2020 is Rs. 13 Lakhs (March 31, 2019 : Rs. 13 Lakhs)

B. Claims disputed by the Company:

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Claims against the company not acknowledged as debts* 18,362 18,362
18,362 18362

* The claims against the company comprises of

(a) An outsourced security vendor has commenced an action against the company in respect of debit notes raised by the company for
non - performance of their agreed duties. The company has estimated that if the action is successful, estimate liability may be approx.
Rs. 5 Lakhs (March 31, 2019: 5 Lakhs). A trial date has not yet been set and therefore it is not practicable to state the timing of any
payment. The company has been advised by its legal counsel that it is possible, but not probable, the action will succeed and accordingly
no provision for liability has been recognized in the financial statements.

(b) The Company received Assessment Order dated December 26, 2018 for FY 2015-2016 i.e. A.Y 2016-17 wherein the Assessing
Officer (AO) raised Income tax demand of Rs 18,356.50 lakhs under Income Tax Act, 1961. The company has filed appeal in respect of
the above demand which is pending at Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals).

The company has assessed that it is only possible, but not probable, that outflow of economic resources will be required and hence these
demands have been disclosed as contingent liability.

C. There are numerous interpretative issues relating to the Supreme Court (SC) judgement on Provident Fund dated February 28, 2019,
As a matter of caution, the Company has made a provision on a prospective basis from the date of the SC order. The company will
update its provision. on receiving further clarity on subject.

(This space has intentionally been left blank)
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Delhivery Private Limited
Notes to stand alone financini siatements for the year ended March Vi, 2020

(Al amounts 1 Indian Rupees in ks, unless otherwise stated)

3. Business combinations
Acquisition during the previows vear ended March 31, 2019
Aramex India Private Limited (" Arames ™)

The company entcied mto an assel nurchase agreement with Aramex India Private Limited (* Aramex ) on February 27, 2019, to purchase the assets, along with
emploved with the company ai a total purchase consideration of Re 2,654 takhs

Asscts acquired

The faur values of the identifiable assets of Aramex as at the date of acquisition were

ploying all such emp

4

whao wanted to be

Particular Amount
Property, Plant and Equipment T 388
Customer Relatrons<hip 611
Non Compete 17
Goodwiil —— 1,638
Purchase Consideration - 2,654
All other disclosures as required under IND AS 103 are impracticable as:

1) far valuation was not dome of the total consideration transferred or each major class of consideration ai the date of acquisition or thereafier,

) there were no contingent consideration arrangements entered into with the acquiree,

m) no contmgent liabilities have been recognised.
() there are no such transactions that are recognized separately from the acquisition of assets and assumption of liabilites in the husiness combination,
+) the above business combmanon 1s 7ot a bargain-purchase
(W) the above business combination 15 not achieved in stages

351 Fair Values

Financial instruments by category

The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories as of March 31, 2020 were as follows:

Partical K teed coit Fn;r:":i!‘u::;:n;t Carrying value
Assets:

Cash and cash eqmvalents (mfer nate 12) 10,602 - 10,602
Other bank balances {refer note 13) 28,866 - 28 866
Investments (current) (refer note 5) 81.044 81,044
Investments (non-current) (refer note 5) - 37,709 37,709
Investments 10 equiiy secunties (non-current) (refer note 5) o4 - 04
Trade recervables (refer note 7) 60,188 60,188
Loans (current) (vefer note 8} 400 - 400
Other i | assets (refer note ¥} 115372 - 115,372
Total 216,332 118,753 335,085
Liabilities:

Trade payables (refer note 200 26,394 - 26,394
Borrowng (refer note 16) 19,035 - 19.035
Other financial liabilities (refer note 17) 6,731 - 6,731
Toal 52,160 - 52,160
The carrying value and fair value of fi ial instr by ies as of March 31, 2019 were as lollows:

Fair Value through Carrying value
Particulars Amortised cost profit or loss

Agsels:

Cash and cash equivalents (refer note 12) 163,967 - 165,967
Other bank balances (refer note '3) M - 9
Investments (current) (refer note 5) - 1,002 1,002
Investments { non-current) (refer notc 5) - 114,495 114,495
Investments i equily securities (non-current) (refer note 5) 551 - 551
Investments i preference securibes (non-current ) (refer note 5) =

Trade receivables (refer note 7) 21,157 - 21157
Laans (non-curent ) (refer note ¥, 271 - 273
Loans (current) (sefer note 8, 918 - 938
Other financial assets (refer note 3) y 38,460 = 18,459
Total et 227,434 115,497 342,931
Liabilitics: Tt T

I'rade payables (refer note 20) 15,725 [3,725
Borrowing (refer note 16) 6,441 = 6,441
Other financial habilties (refer note 17) 2,958 # 2,958
Total 25,124 - 25,124

The followmg methods | assumptions weee used 10 estimate the fuir values:

1) The carrying value of trade recervables ash and cash equivalents, trade payables, securily deposits, lease labilities and other current financial assets and other curent financial babilities measured ar amortised

cost approximate their far value dur 1o the shor-term maturities of these nstruments

1) The fair value of nor-current Gnancial assets and financial babilines are detesmined by discounting future cash flows using curnent rates of mstruments with similar terms and credut nsk The current

does not reflect signifeant changes from the discount 1ates used imtially Therefore, the carrymng value of these insiruments measured at amortised cost approximate thew far value

i) Farr value of quoted mutusl fuods 15 based on quoted market prices at the reponing date
w) Fair value of debt mstruments & estimated based on discounted cash Aows valuation techmigue u
v Faur value of the share buy back ¢ i based on dis ted cash flow valustio

rupections, discount rate and credit nsk

ki

15 5

rates used

w projections and finaneial projections/budgets approved by the management
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S5.2 n) Fair value Wierarchy

Fair value hoerarch

Level |- Quioted aroes inonctive markets
Lewel & - Sigiifiear abeecvable inputs
Level 3 - Sigraticant unobhservable mpuis

The following table presents fur value hierarchy of assets and labilities measured at fur value on a recurmng basis as of March 31, 2020:

Particulars Fair value measurement using
4 e e =8 - March 31, 2020 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assels Investments (Refer Note $) 118,753 118,753 - ;

The following table presenis fae value hierarchy of assets snd liabilities measwed al far value on a recurnng basis as of March 37, 2019

:_:l\rlkuhr_q [ 9 o = Fair value measuresment using —
e e N S R, e March 31, 2019 Level 1 Level2 Level 3
Axsols Invesimenis (Refer Moie 5) 115,497 115,497 - =
351 {b) Fair value hiernrchy
e e Investments in equity’pref securities
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value mensurement is as follows: March J1, 2020 March 31, 2019
Batance at the begmning uf the year - 1,071
hsposals duning the yew A
Fair vilue loas on fuuncial mstruments at fmr value thiough profit or loss == . LO7I
Balunce at the end of the year B 3

35.1 (c) Fair value hierarchy
Following table describes the valuation techniques used and key inputs thereto for the bevel 3 financial assets / linbilities ns of 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018:

Financial Assets Valuation technique(s) Key Inpuifs) Sensitivity
I L in equity {ron=current) {Refer Note 5) 1) Duscount rate
Investments in preference secunties (non-current) {Refer Note 5} Refer Note below® ui} Carorwth rate for long 1erm cash flow projections Refer Note below**

i) Future cash flow projections

* The far values of tinanical asseis included n level 2 have been determined in accrodance with generally accepted pricing models based on a d 1 cashilow anal with the most sigmificant mputs being
the discount rute that retlects the credit risk of counier panies
** Senwitvity to changes in unabger sanle mputs. The far value of theze finacial #ssets 1= direcily propomional to the estimated {uture cash flow projections based on the budgets approved by the management i

the cash flow: projections were (o wncrease | decrease by 1% with all the sther variables held constant, the far value of these financial sasets and financial habilines would increase / decrease by 1%

35.3Fi inl risk 1 objectives und policies
Financial risk management
Financial risk factors
The Company's activities expose il to 8 variety of financial nsks: market nsk, credit nsk and liquidity nsk. The Company's focus 15 1o foresee the unpredictability of financial markets and seek to mmmize poteniial

Company's exposure to credit risk iz influenced mainly by the individual ck wtic of each

A) Marke! risk
Market rizk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial ir wall fi b of changes in market pnoes. Market nsk compnses three types of nsk mterest rate risk, foreign
currency nisk and other price risk, such as equity pnce nsk and o dity risk. Fi | inst affected by market sk include loans and borowings, deposits. The Company has in place appropriaic risk
management policies 10 limit the impact of these risks on its financial perfi The Company ptimization of cash through fund planning and robust cash management practices

i) Interesi Rate Risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the faur alue or [uture cash flows of a financial instrument will Auctuaie because of changes wn markel interest rates  As majonty of the financial assets and habilities of the
(& ure e'ther nor bearing or fixed interest bearing instruments, Ihe Company s net exposure to mierest nsk is neghgible

iil) Foreign currency izk
Foreign currency risk 18 the gk, that the far value or future cash fiows of an exp e will i1 of changes in foreign exchange rates The entire revenue and magonty of the expenses of the Company

ua demm:mmd wi indiar Rupees
v risk (o b low snd does not hedge 11s currency risk As vaniations i foreign curtency sxchange rites are not expected w have a significant impact on the resulls of operstions a

SEnsitiviry lmtyys 15 nol presentid

Credit risk

€ redit risk refers lo the nisk of defiull on s sbligation by the counterparty resulting in o financial loss The maximum exposuse to the credit risk a1 the reporting date 18 prumanly from trade recervables amounting
10 Rs 60,188 and 21,157 Lakhs as of March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019 respectively Trade recetvables are typically unsecured and are derived from revenue earned from customers primarly located in India
Credit sk has always been managed by the company through sredit approvals and continuansly monitoring the credit worthiness of customers to which the Company grants credit terns 10 the normal course of
business O account of adoption of ind AS 109, the group wses expecied credit loss mode! (0 nssess the impairment loss or gain. The company uses a provisien mainx ke eompule the expecied credit loss
allowance for rade receivables. T he pravision matnx tskes inio account available external and internal credit nsk factors such ns the company's b | experience for %

(s space fras been imennonally fft blank)
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35,3 Financial rigk management objectives and policies (contd )

o o e 5 4SS S S —— — . —

Credit risk exposure

The company "as established an allowance *or impairnent that represents its evpected credit losses in wespeet of irade and other receivables The 2 uses a simplified approach for the purpose of
computatron uf expected credit loss for sade receivables and 12 months expected crodit Inss for cther iecervables An impairment analysis s performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major
parties. In addinon, a larg= munber of mino recervables are combined into homogancus categories and ascessed for impaimment collectively. The calculation is based oa historical daia of actual losses

Liquidity visk
Ultimate responsibility for liquidity nsk management rests with the Board, which has established an appropnate hquidity nsk gement fi % for the 2 of the Company's short, medium and

long-term funding and liquidity management requirements. The company's principal sources of hiquidity are cash and cash equivalents and the cash flow that is generated from operations The Company manages
liqurdity nsk by maintaining adequate cash reserves. by continnously monitoning forscasi and actual cash flows, and by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and habilites

The table below pruvides detarls ragarding the contractual matunties of sigmificant financial labalities as of March 31, 2000

Particulars Less than 1 year 1-1 years -4 years > 4 years Total
Trade payables (Refur Note 20) 26,393 5 = 26,301
Bormmowing (Refer Now 16) 2,054 1541 3440 19,034
Other financial liabihiies (Refer Note 17) 6,731 & 6,731

The table below provider details agarding the contrachial maturities of significant financial liabilities as of March 31, 2019

FirGioatark m 1-2 years 14 years > 4 years Total

Trade payables (Refer Note 20) 18,717 248 - - 18,965

Borrowing (Rerer Note 16) 2879 364 3,198 - 6,441

Other financial liabiles (Refer Note 17) 2,958 = = - 2,958
35.4 Capital management

For the purpose of the company's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, intruments entirely equity in nature, securities premium and all other equity reserves attnbutable to the equity holders
of the company The primary objective of the pany's capital 8 15 to maximise the shareholder value

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to.
* Safeguard their ability to continue as a going concem, so that they can continue io provide retums for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders; and
» Maintain an optimai capital structure to reduce the cost of capital

The Company monitors capital by regularly . eviewing the capital structure As a part of this review, the Company considers the cost of capital and the risks associated with the issued share capital In the opimon
of the Directors. the Jompany™s caprtal risk 15 low,

Mo changes were made in the objectives. pulicies or processes for managing capital during the years ended March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019.7
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36. Share-based payments

General Employee Share-opton Plan (GESP): Delhivery Employees Stock Option Plan, 2012

The company provides share-based payment schemes to its employees. During the year ended March 31, 2020, an employee stock option plan (ESOP) was in
existence. The relevant details of the scheme and the grant are as below:

On September 28, 2012, the board of directors approved the Delhivery Employees Stock Option Plan, 2012 for issue of stock options to the key emplovees
and directors of the company. Accerding te the Scheme 2012, it applies to bona fide confirmed and who are in whole — time employment of the company and
as decided by the board of directors of the company or appropriate committee of the board constituted by the board from time to time. The options granted
under the Scheme shall vest not less than one year and not more than four years from the date of grant of options. Once the options vest as per the Scheme,
they would be exercisable by the Option Grantee at any time and the equity shares arising on exercise of such options shall not be subject to any lock-in
period

Movements during the year
The following table illustrates the number and weighted average exercise prices (WAEP) of, and movements in, share options during the year:

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
No. of options WAEP (Rs.) No. of options WAEP (Rs.)
Outstanding at the beginning of 1he year 207,756 1,362 150,089 1,154
Granted during the year 52,124 2,985 70,325 1,854
Forfeited during the year (8,985) 1,931 (12,658) 1,623
Exercised during the year (16,557) 884 - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 234,338 1,735 207,756 1,362
Exercisable at the end of the year 234338 1,735 207,756 1,362

The weighted average remaining centraciual life for the stock options outstanding as at March 31, 2020 is 2.55 years (March 31, 2019: 2.97 years). The range
of exercise prices for options outstanding at the end of the year was Rs 225.94 to Rs. 2985 (March 31, 2019: Rs. 225.94 to Rs. 2,985).

The following tables list the inputs tc the models used for the GESP plans for the years ended March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019, respectively:
March 31, 2020 March 31,2019

Expected volatility (%) 38.00% 38.00%
Risk—free interest rate (%) 6.5% & 6.7% 6.90%
Expected life of share options 4 to 5 years 410 5 years
Weighted average share price (INR ) 1,735 1.362
Model used Black Scholes Option Pricing Model

The expected life of the share options is based on historical data and current expectations and is not necessarily indicative of exercise patterns that may occur.
The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the historical volatility over a period similar to the life of the options is indicative of future trends, which

may also not necessarily be the actual outcome.

37. Operating Segments

The primary reporting of the Company has been performed on the basis of business segment. Based on the "management approach” as defined in Ind AS 108 -
Operating Segments. the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM') has evaluated of the Company's performance at an overall level as one segment which is
'Logistics Services' that includes warchousing, last mile logistics, designing and deploying logistics management systems, logistics and supply chain
consulting/advice, inbound/procurement support. and operates in a single business segment based on the nature of the services, the risks and returns, the
nrganization structure and the internal financial reporting sysiems Accordingly, the figures appearing in these financial statements relate to the Company's
single business segment. The Company reports geographical segment which is based on the areas in which major operating divisions of the Company operate.
The significant part of Company operations are based in India.
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38. Disclosure required nunder Sec 186(4) of the Companies Aci 2013

Included n loans and advance are certain intercorporate deposits the particulars of which are disclosed below as required by Sec 186(4) of Companies Act 2013

Name of the party Rate of Interest_____ Due date __Secured/ unsecured March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Mituj Marke ling Private Limited 10% per annum 31/03/2021 Unsecured - 273
= 273

39. Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006

Particulars - March 31, 2020 March 31,2019

The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supglier as at the end of each accounting 80 6

year

Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises :(4) f

Interest due on above

The amount of interest paid by the buyer n terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act 2006 along with the amounts of

the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year

The amount or interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond -
the appeinted day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act 2006,

The amount of ntesest acciued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year

The amount of fiither interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the

interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible
expenditure under seciion 23 of the MSMT Act 2006

Dues to Micio and Small Enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the
basis of information collected by the Management.

40. During FY 2018-19, the terms and conditions in the shareholder's agreement had been modified to not include the share buy-back clause we.f. December 20, 2018
Accordingly, fair value loss on share buy back obligations at fair value through profit or loss had been recorded upto the date of modification in terms ie December 20,

2018. Further, the company had extinguished the financial liability at the time of modification in terms,

41. As at the year ended on March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019, the Company is having net deferred tax assets primarily comprising of unabsorbed Depreciation and carry
forward Losses under tax laws However in the absence of reasonable certainty as to its realization of Deferred Tax Assets (DTA), DTA has not been created

42. Expenditure in foreign currency

March 31, 2020 March 31,2019
Legal and professional fees 275 124
Recruiting expenses 8 6
Miscellaneous expenses 336 207
Website and technology exp=nses 159 174
Staff welfare expenses* 0 0
Business development expenses - 2
Line haul expenses 1,250 307
Travelling and conveyance* 2 0
Rates and taxes* 0
Printing and stationery* 0 -
Communication cost* 0 -
Total 2,070 820

*Value less than Rs. 0.5 Lakhs
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43. The Company l-as ~stablishicd » comprehensive sysiem on mangenanes ol inlonmation and documenis as required by the transfer pricing legislation under section 2
22E i Income Fay Aci, 1961 Since the law requires existence of such information and doc umentation to be contemporaneous 1n nature, the Company is in the process of
apdativg the decunentation for the memational transactions sntered into with the assocated enferprises during the period and expects such records to be in axistence
fati st by the due date ax required wnder taw, The niwnagement 15 of ihe opinion thal its international transactions are at arm’s lengih and the aforesaid legisiation will not
feave any ampact en e fancinl statements particularly on the amount of income tax expense «nd that of pravision of taxation

44. Estimation Uncertsinty «f COVID 19;

rhe outhreak of Coronavirus (COVID-19; pandemic globally is causiag significant disturbance and slowdown of activity with economic and social disruption to the
company impacting ivestment ia subsidiariex, seivables imcludwng wade receivables, unbilled receivables, Right to Use Asset. goodwill and intangible assets In
assussiny iecoverability of such assets the Company has considered internal and external information up to the date of approval of these financial statements The company
has performed sensitivity analysis on the assumptions used and based on current indicators of future economic conditions, the Company expects to recover the carrying
anount of these usses. The impact of the globar health pandemic may be different from that estimated as at the date of approval of these financial statements and the
Cempany wali contimug 10 ¢lusely morilor any material changes to future economic condition

45. The company has meorpmated Delhivery Freight Services Private Limit=d, a wholly owned subsidiary of Delhivery Private Limited in April 2020. The Board of
Drieciors of the company on fune 25, 2020 had granted its approval to transfer business, as a going concern on a slump sale basis, spec:fic to Full Track Load (FTL)
busyness in the name of'“‘Delhivery Freight Services Private Limited” a whollv owned subsidiary of the Company

46. The figuies for the previous year have been regrouped / reclassified, wherever necessary, to conform to current year's classification.

A per our repott of even date

For S.R Batliboi & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants BelTivery Private Limited
CAI Firm registration number 10104 3W/E300004 CIN/

UAM090DL2011PTC2212
= ﬁ
hfl Barua

andeep Kumar Barasia
Director Director
Membership No.: 094941 DIN : 01432123 DIN - 05131571

Place- New Dethi a \:,\
\hrs

Date . September 25 2020
Kriti Gupta

Company Secretary
Membership No. : A56630

Place . Gurngram Place Gurugram
Date : September 235, 2020 Date : September 25, 2020
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